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Deutsche Bank

February 8, 2006

Office of International Corporate Finance
Securities and Exchange Commission
450 Fifth St. N.

Washington, D.C. 20549

Re: Information Furnished under File Number 289-00060 with Respect to the ADR facility of Shares of
Daiwa House industry Co. Ltd. pursuanrt to a Waiver from General Instruction {.A. (3) of Form F-6.

Ladies & Gentlamien:

We -provide the enclosed submission of materials with respect to the foreign issuer of securities
underlying the AR facility as referenced above

The information contained in this letter and i#ts attachments and exhibits is being furnished under
Paragraph (b){1}(i) of Ruie 12g3-2 with the und::rstanding that such information end documents will not be
deemed “filed” with the Securities and Exchange Commission, or ctherwise subject to the liabitities of
Section 18 of the Exchange Act.

Regards,

oo G2/}

Jean Paul Simoses
Associate
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About this report
Years showi in graphs are fiscal vears ending March 31 unless othenvise indicated.

Ferward-looking statements

Statements contained in this report reg
based on information available to the
may thus differ substantially frorn those pre

arding the Company's plans, strategies, and expactations for future perdormance fall into the category of torward looking statements,”which are
1y's managernent at the time of writing, They ar= therelie subject 1o a nurmber of uncenainties and unkncwable factors, and actual 1esults
cted

Sales statements on a segmental basis
Segiment sales figures shoven in this annual teport are 1otals of sales to exiemal customers and Infer-agment sales and ansfers Segment sales ratios, however are calculatad solely on the
of sales to extemal customers.




the 50th anniversary of its founidation this year,

moves toward a brighter future.




When we say "hearts,”
of course we mean those special emotional connections between people,
or between people and the objects they love.
The message conveyed by our “Endless Heart” philosophy, and the logo that symbolizes it
— a heart-shaped Mobius Strip that indicates a never-ending process —
is that the Daiwa House Group co-creates value for individuals,
communities, and people’s lifestyles.
The Endless Heart symbol has yet another significance:it conveys the close relationship
among the companies in the Daiwa House Group,
and the unshakable determination of the managements of all those companies
to grow and prosper together into the far distant future.
Moreover, the circular shape at the center of the Endless Heart symbol represents
Daiwa (whose literal meaning is Great Harmony):
we regard this as the basic philosophic principle on which the Group rests.
All of us here at Daiwa House Industry and our other Group companies are

the successors to Mr.Nobuo Ishibashi, the founder of the Group.

We Build Hearts

Over the next 50 years too, we will continue to build hearts
by offering our customers finely-crafted products, as well as

services provided with friendliness and sincerity.

2 Annual Report 2005
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Dear Fellow Share Owners

The Next 50 Years and Beyond

In April 2005 the Daiwa House Group marked the 50th
anniversary of its foundation. f wish 1o express my most
sincere gratitude to you, our shareholders, for your long-
standing support for the Group.

Fiscal 2004 marked not only our half-centennial, but also
the start of full-scale Group management under a new
management structure, Among the specific measures in-
volved, steps were taken to expand the scope of its busi-
ness by making Daiwa Kosho Lease Co, Ltd, an affiliate
formerly accounted for by the equity method, a consoli-
dated subsidiary, and investing in Osaka Marubiru Co., Ltd.

As a result of these measures, we were able (0 achieve
growth in both revenues and profits for the second suc-
cessive year.Consolidated sales reached a new record high
of ¥1,365,914 million (US$12,766 miflion), up 11.5% from
the previous term, operating income totaled ¥67,849
million (US$634 million), up 13.7%, and net income was
¥40,262 million (US$376 million), representing growth of
8.1%. Regarding dividend payment, we will increase the
annual dividend by ¥2 per share from the previous year,
o ¥17.

In fiscal 2005 we have expressed our determination to
achieve growth over the next 50 years by mapping out a
management vision, which we have called "Connecting

4 Annuzl Report 2005

Hearts,” and creating a new Group symbol called
"Endless Heart." In addition, we have set out a corporate
vision with the aim of building a Group that co-creates
value for individuals, communities and people’s fifestyles,
and have formulated our "Challenge 2005" medium-term
management plan as the first step towards achieving
these goals. Among the goals of this three-year plan
are the attainment of consolidated sales of ¥1.7 trillion,
recurring profit of ¥100 billion, and return on equity of 9%
or more.

Under its new management vision, the Daiwa House
Group is dedicated to ensuring that, through sincere
and honest corporate activities, it enhances still further
its excellent reputation and the trust held in it by society.
We will also step up our efforts to strengthen further the
bonds we have developed with our customers, building
truly enduring finks with all our stakeholders.

Toheo Mgt

Takeo Higuchi
Chairman and CEQ






Japanese Economy in Fiscal 2004

Breakdown of real GDP in fiscal 2004

j

GDP
i ¥ 534 trillion /

N

N

B Gross fixed capital formation  24% { Private capital investment 67%
" . Consumption 73% O Private residential investment 14%
O Net exports, etc. 3% W Public construction investment, etc. 19%

in JAPAN

The Japanese economy continued to undergo a gradual recovery in fiscal
2004, led by private-sector capital investment. Evidence for this recovery is
seen in the nation’s GDP, which grew by 1.9% year-on-year for its third con-
secutive increase. Confidence in the persistence of this recovery trend waned
somewhat in the second half of the term, however, against the backdrop of a
slowdown in exports owing to the strength of the yen, as well as the damp-
ening effects of inventory adjustment in the digital electronic appliance in-
dustry. In the Company’s business fields of housing and other construction,
the business performance of most companies was flat, with some firms re-
cording slight year-on-year declines.

6 Annual Report 2005



Construction investment in Japan {unadjusted figures)

¥trilfions %
100 20

Private construction investment
and commercial building floorspace

¥ trillions million m*
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1 Public canstruction investment (left scale)
{J Private construction investment {left scale)
= Construction investment as a percentage of GOP {right scale)

Construction of buildings and houses in Japan

Total construction investment in fiscal 2004 declined 22%
year-on-year to ¥5277 trillion, representing a falloff of ap-
proximately 40% from the peak year of 1992. As a percent-
age of the nation’s GDP this investment figure, at 10.4%, has
been roughly halved by comparison with the 20.1% figure
recorded in 1980.Owing to the governmentss fiscal restraint
policy, the falloff in construction investment has been
particularly dramatic in public works investment, which de-
creased by around 10% each year for three straight years,
ending at ¥21.08 triflion in fiscal 2004.

Private-sector housing investment, on the other hand, reg-
istered a slight year-on-year growth in fiscal 2004, by 2.2%
to ¥18.27 trillion. Housing construction starts in the report-
ing period grew by 1.7% to 1.19 million for the second
consecutive increase. In the category of owner-occupied
houses, construction starts were down slightly year-on-
year, but in the construction of both rental housing and
in lot~subdivision (single-farmily house development and

90 91 92 93 94 95 96 97 98 9% 00 01 02 03 04 05

{3 Private-sector non-residential construction (left scale)
[ private-sector residential construction {left scale)
= Commercial building floorspace {right scate)

condominiums), year-on-year growth in construction starts
was recorded. in lot-subdivisions, single-family houses were
particularly in demand, with construction starts posting a
strong 7.8% rise over the previous term for their second
straight year of growth.

Turning to private-sector non-residential construction in-
vestment, companies generally adopted a proactive stance
on capital investment, particularly in the manufacturing
sector, and thanks to this total investment in this category
was up 11.7% over the previous term, at ¥8.51 trillion. The
floorspace of all types of buildings on which construction
was started registered a year-on-year increase of 3.5%,
with especially sharp growth of 36.0% being posted by the
floorspace of manufacturing plant construction starts. In
floorspace terms, other categories of building also rose over
the previous vear’s level, although by smaller percentages,
with offices up 9.6%, warehouses up 8.8%, and retail outlets
up 7.5%.

Daiwa House Group 7



Group Resuits Summary

Asof March 31, 2005

Performance
1 1 .5% up 1 3.; % up 8.1 % up
Net sales Operating income Net income
Net sales increased ¥141,266 million Operating income increased ¥8,188 Net income increased ¥3,005 million
to ¥1,365,914 million million to ¥67,849 million to ¥40,262 million
¥hillion ¥billion ¥ billion
1,600 30 45
- - o0
1,200 o 50 . 30 ___11 {‘
§
300 s A0 e 5 _:
499 R 20 ;__-———“———— 9 H
1 , o 100 -
ol 02 03 04 05 o1 02 03 04 05 01 02 03 04 05
Consolidated Financial Highlights
Daiwa House Industry Co, Ltd. and subsidiaries
Miltions of yen Thousands of U.5. doflars
Years ended March 31, 2005 2004 2003 2005
Net sales ¥1,365,914 ¥1,224,648 ¥1,184,544 $12,765,551
Operating income 67,849 55,661 45,272 634,103
Other income (expenses) (4,741) 8236 (200,429) (44,309)
Net income {loss} 40,262 37,257 (91,388) 376,280
Per share of common stock (in ven and dollars)
Basic netincome {loss) 73.26 68.16 (167.06) 0.68
Shareholders equity 959.08 902.32 88455 895
Cash dividends applicable to the year 17.00 15.00 10.00 0.16
Totaf assets 1,358,807 1,087,658 1,094,441 12,699,131
Shareholders’equity 524,110 493,050 483,684 4,898,224
Return on equity (%) ' 7.92 763 (17.14)
Return on asset (%) 3.29 341 (8.01)
Equity ratio (%) 38.57 4533 4419

Note: The U.S.dotlar amounts represent transtations of Japanese yen for convenience only at the approximate exchange rate on March 31,2005 of ¥107 = USS1.
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O 3pomt up

ROE (Return on Equity)

ROE rose up 0.3 point to 7.9%

¥5.10

Net income per share

Net income per share rose ¥5.1 to
¥73.26

¥56.8 w

Shareholders’ equity per share

Shareholders’ equity per share rose
¥56.8 to ¥959.08

¥ ¥
90 1,600
I
0 i 1,200
o
30 ! L el -
a |
a .
Q | i 400

-180

c "—’7

[ 02 03 04 05

The Parent Company’s Share of the Group Total

Sales

Daiwa House Group:

¥1,365.9 billion /A\\

Daiwa House Industry:
¥1,092 .3 billion

Operating income

Daiwa House Group: |
¥67.8 billion T

. ~
Daiwa House Industry: ™~ _1__-~
¥52.1 billion

0

Number of employees

Daiwa House Group: |

19,770 ) /»L\\
N\
i 58% !
\ /
Daiwa House Industry:\\ "
11,462
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Investor information

As of March 31, 2005

Common stock

¥110,120 million
(US$1,029,159 thousand)

Shares
Authorized 1,900,000,000
Issued and outstanding 550,664,416
Number of shareholders 29,218
BPS and PBR
¥ times
1,200 20
i
900 15
600 10
0 | 05
o) i1

01 02 03 04 05
™ BPS (book value per share ;left scate)
= PBR (price to book value ratio ;right scale)

Dividends and dividend payout ratio

¥ %
20 200

150

01 02 03 04 Q5
7 Dividends (left scale)
= Dividend payoutratio (right scale}
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Shareholdings by scale
%l e Shares %
) "1 million or more 415110443 7538
%3 100 thousand or more 84,907,451 15.42
710 thousand or more 19,874,600 3.61
{735 thousand or more 7,110,611 1.29
2 2 thousand or more 12,135,917 2.20
771 thousand or more 9,220,250 1.67
B Less than 1 thousand 2,305,144 0.42
Principal shareholders Thousands of shares
Japan Trustee Services Bank, Limited (trust account) 49,591
The Master Trust Bank of Japan, Ltd. (trust account) 36,790
Nippon Life Insurance Company 12,503
The Dai-ichi Mutual Life Insurance Company 11,065
UFJ Bank, Limited 10,032
Sumitomo Mitsui Banking Corporation 10,000
The Chuo Mitsui Trust and Banking Company, Limited 9,499
The Chase Manhattan Bank NA, London 9,417
The Daiwa House Emplayee Shareholders’ Association 9,282
Mizuho Corporate Bank, Ltd. 9,209
Foreign shareholdings ratio
" .Domestic corporations 57.30%
B Overseas individuals and corporations 32.15%
M Domestic individuals and others 10.55%
USA & QOceania
igr?&z Canada | &others
o 2867% [ 745% 378%
Foreign shareholdings over time %
40
k) V4
N \J e
20 =
S
10
= Daiwa House ndustry
= All listed companies 2
or 02 03 04 05



Indices of Daiwa House's stock price and trading volumes on the Tokyo Stock Exchange (Base month: April 2001=100)

150

Thousands of shares
60,000 l
43,000 . s 2

20000,

FiRuERRR

2001 [ 2002 | 2003 | 2004 | 2005 {Calendar year)
& Daiwa House trading volumes = Daiwa House stock prices = TOPIX
Daiwa House Industry Co., Ltd. Term-end
Head office March 31 every year

3-3-5 Umeda, Kita-ku, Osaka 530-8241

Ordinary general meeting of shareholders
Phone: +81-6-6346-2111 Fax; +81-6-6342-1399 y gene g

Held in Osaka by the end of June, which is within 3 months
Contact from the day following the balance sheet date for each year
Should you have any inquiries or need further

; ) Transfer agent
information, please contact us at the numbers below:

The Chuo Mitsui Trust and Banking Co, Ltd.
Finance Department, Head Office 3-33-1 Shiba, Minato-ku, Tokyo
Daiwa House Industry Co, Ltd.
Phone: +81-6-6342-1400 Fax: +81-6-6342-1419
e-mail: zaimubu@ms.po.daiwahouse.cojp

Securities traded
Tokyo and Osaka stock exchanges

Securities code
1925

Daiwa House website

Daiwa House offers information on its atest corporate
performance, annual report etc.on our website.

Daiwa House Group: hitp//www.daiwahouse com/English
Daiwa House industry: htp//www.daiwahouse cojp/English

Daiwa House Group 11






DaiwaHouse.
Group

Daiwa House Industry Co., Ltd.

Takeo Higuchi (middie)
Chairman and CEC

Kenji Murakami (efy
President and COO

Tetsuji Ogawa (right)
Executive Vice President and CFO

Daiwa House Group 13
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Message from the CEO

Toward a Brighter Future for Japanese Society
— Qur Commitment to “Endless Heart” —

Daiwa House Industry marked the 50th anniversary of its
foundation in April 2005. As one of the leading housing
companies in Japan, we have constructed approximately
1.16 million houses, accompanying the development of
Japanese society, while expanding into broad areas such
as commercial facility construction, resort hotels, home
centers, and distribution. Today, we are a multi-business
enterprise that enriches people’s lifestyles.

Japanese society is facing a rapid transformation to
an "aging society,” characterized by an increasing
average lifespan and a declining birthrate. The social
and economic environments have also been changing
markedly from the days of material shortages to an age
of quality characterized by the pursuit of wealth through
an economy of fulfillment. Employment patterns are
more fluid, departing from the traditional lifelong
employment system.

Daiwa House Group
— that works to co-create value for individuals,

communities and people’s lifestyles Hatels/

Resorts

In this environment, we have identified ourselves as a
Group that co-creates value for individuals, communities
and lifestyles, and have established our New Group
symbol, the "Endless Heart,” and a Management Vision
of "Connecting Hearts" to continue creating new value
with our stakeholders in the society for the future, while
constantly examining ourselves objectively.

Placing "Endless Heart" at the center of our management,
we will endeavor to create new value through a concert-
ed effort as a Group under this symbol. In doing so, we
hope to help build a Japanese society in which everyone
can enjoy more enriched lives.

To become a corporate group with the No.1 brand im-
age in Japan — the first group brand that connects
people’s hearts — this is our commitment, symbolized in
“Endless Heart.”

Housing
Management

. Rental
Lifestyle Support Housing

Renovation

Condo-
miniums

DaiwaHouse.

Medical &
Nursing Care
Facilities

Commercial
Construction

Retail

Facilities Business Support

Renovation

Distribution
Facilities

Daiwa House Group 15



Total housing starts and Daiwa House aggregate sales

Millions of units
20

/T

.Anticipated future trends in

N\ new housing starts
\7 V {(Research Institute of
. ‘Construction and Economy)

i0 -—_"___1_—‘ Bl

Aggregate housing sales by Daiwa House: 1,159,232 -7 Rl el
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{JRental apartment buildings & Condominiums

0O Single-family houses

= New housing starts in Japan

2010

== New housing starts by Daiwa House

Co-creating new value in the housing industry

Daiwa House Industry Co, Lid. created prefabricated
houses based on its concept of the industrialization of
construction. [t has since been inspiring new values in the
Japanese housing industry with its pioneering spirit.

Today, Daiwa House Industry is at the core of the housing
business in the Daiwa House Group, and has accumulated
1.16 million units in housing stock since its foundation.
The Company supplies some 50,000 units of residential
housing, rental apartment buildings and condominiums
every year, and has a market share of roughly 3.6% in
new housing starts in Japan (ranking it second in the in-
dustry in single-family houses and rental apartments).

Although the level of new housing starts in Japan is high-
er than in Europe and the United States in guantitative
terms, with a supply of approximately 1.2 million housing
units per year (roughly 1.7 times that of the United States
per 1,000 people), the floor space per capita is the small-
est of the five feading developed nations, namely Japan,
the United Kingdom, Germany, France, and the United
States. As such, space is a key issue for the future.

Moreover, with new housing starts in Japan expected to
decline, the housing industry needs to possess strategies
that are founded on a realistic approach, considering

16 Annual Report 2005

both the flow (new housing) and stock (used housing)
markets accurately. In the housing stock market, respond-
ing to customer needs for longer useful fives for their
residences, primarily through improvement of hardware,
will become an important issue. | believe that our com-
mitment should be to develop and broadly introduce
technologies that support the stack, such as earthquake
damage mitigation technologies, and upkeep and repair
technologies, and to create a society in which housing
stock assumes a greater importance thanks (o an im-
provement in the average quality of housing.

Japanese society is experiencing dramatic change. For
instance, Japan is the world's maost rapidly aging popula-
tion, with roughly a quarter of the population forecast to
be 60 or over by 2015. Moreover, one out of three family
units is likely to be a single-person household in 2025
compared with the present average of 2.27 persons per
household. Anticipating these changes, the Daiwa House
Group will work to create new value in the housing indus-
try by responding seriously to calls for houses in which
every one of our customers can spend their entire lives.
At the same time, we will continue striving to achieve
a harronious relationship among housing, society and
the environment.



Housing in Japan and the number of households

Message from the CEQ

Average housing space and investment

Thousands of units Thousands of households m? Millions of U.5.dollars
GO,000 £0,000 €0 20
—
45,000 bl 45000 45 15
e
o T "
30000 . 30,000 E0) . 4l 10
15,000 15,000 15 i ? as
i L REAYSY S - .12 M
o 0 0 l | i % 9
68 73 78 83 83 93 98 03 I(Calendar Japan USA UK france  Germany

O Total number of housing units (left scale)
= Total number of households {right scale)

year)

[OFloor space per person (left scale)

DPrivate-sector housing investment per 1,000
population {1998) (right scale}

‘Responding to demands in welfare, the environment, health,
and information technology to realize dreams

The Daiwa House Group has been deploying its resources
to generate ideas in every area of housing, and has been
creating new values together with its customers ever
since its foundation. We have always possessed the inno-
vative spirit needed to explore new horizons.

We understand the key concerns for Japan for the future,
including welfare, the environment, health, and IT. We will
address these issues and develop new markets that help
achieve people's dreams.

We aim to become a leader in welfare, centered on the
Silver Age Research Center, a pioneer in nursing care and
welfare operations, and leveraging our sophisticated
consulting capabilities in the construction and operation
of welfare facilities. The capabilities have been developed
over many years and encompass a broad range of fa-
cilities, from healthcare for the elderly to multi-function
homes. We hope to create a truly affluent society by re-
considering our true purpose in life as citizens of an ag-
ing society.

With respect to the environment, which encompasses the
Kyoto Protocol, there remain many issues that we must
continue to address, such as attenuating the environmen-
tal burden of construction through longer useful lives for

residences, energy saving, wind- and solar-power genera-
tion systems, storage batteries, recycling of construction
by-products, and rooftop gardening. We will aggressively
take up the challenge of introducing new commercial
solutions in these areas, through technological develop-
ment undertaken jointly with other industries and as well
as cooperation involving industry, the government and
academic institutions. Our Central Research Laboratory is
playing a central role in this initiative.

Concern with health matters is also high in Japan, and
the Daiwa House Group will introduce competitive
products that anticipate market needs, including next-
generation household equipment that allow people
t0 manage their health in their own home, as already
achieved with the development of the Intelligence Toilet.

In information technology, as the broadband penetra-
tion rate in househalds has topped 30% in Japan, we will
make steady progress in finding practical applications for
IT in the home, particularly housing equipped with con-
sumer electronics networks.

Daiwa House Group 17



Improvements made, and new Group structure

By FY2003 FY2004 and after

- Introduction of in-house entrepreneur « Creation of new management vision and new group symbol

system « Drafting of "Challenge 2005” medium-term management plan

« One corporate auditor (external) added,

. A « Creation of CS Promotion Department
making five corporate auditors

. ‘ ) o « Creation of CSR Promotion Preparatory Office, and recrganization
+ Pressing ahead with reinforced initiatives in in fiscal 2005 into CSR Promotion Office
Management the field of CSR
- Support for purchase of low-emission ve-
hicles by employees (cars owned by staff
who visit clients and usad both for waork
and private use)

« Creation of Quality Assurance Department
\

- New, cost-cutting earthquake-absorbing + Strengthening consulting functions in the Commercial
system developed construction business

» Burglar-proofing specifications installed as * Promotion of development of complex-type and large-scale
standard commiercial facilities

* Meeting standards stipulated in the revised - Reinforcement of land development investment business

Building Standard Law 1o prevent sick “ Introduction of customer asset value assessment system

Operations hiouse syndrome ) . -
. - Spin-off of home center business as Royal Home Center Co, Ltd.
+ New construction method for wooden ‘ ‘ ) . .
houses developed + Conversion of Royal Bix Co, Ltd.into a consolidated subsidiary

- Companies specializing in housing loans - Conversion of Daiwa Kosho Lease Co, Ltd.into a consolidated
and renovation establishad subsidiary
- Resort hotel business retuins o profitability  * (nvestmentin Osaka Marubiru Co, Ltd.

- Lump-sum disposal of differences resulting  « Posting of record consolidated sales
from actuarial computation of unrecog-

. - o « Improvement of SG&A ratio
nized retirement benefit obligations

- Total elimination of unrealized losses

on land
Financial - Debt-free management achieved on a
Position non-consolidated basis

- Retum of pension fund assets to the
government

+ Posting of loss on liquidation of affiliates

« ¥75.2 billion provisiona! wiite-off of fixed
assets

18 Annual Report 2005



Our"Heart"is with our stakeholders

We have established a medium-term management plan,
entited "Challenge 2005,” which begins in fiscal year 2005.
Running over three years, the plan is designed to reinforce
our presence as a Group that co-creates value for people,
communities and their lifestyles. Under the plan, we
aim to achieve net sales of ¥1.7 trillion, recurring profit
of ¥100 billion and return on equity of 9% or more on a
consolidated basis for fiscal 2007.

In an industry with a strong dependency on berrowings,
we will establish a healthy financial position and make
active disclosure of corporate information. We will bolster
our financial position, improve transparency and maintain
a management focus on cash flow. We will also sustain
and strengthen our environmental and social contribu-
tion and endeavor to construct a sincere relationship
with all stakeholders.

To achieve all this, we will develop a labor environment
and educational and human resources systems through

Message from the CEO

which each employee at the Daiwa House Group will
be able 1o maximize his or her creativity. This reflects our
recognition that creativity is the very origin of the Daiwa
House Group and the source of cur enterprise value, and
is something that will contribute to building intangible
assets such as brands, technical strength, and design ca-
pability, all important elements that do not appear in the
financial statements.

The future of the Daiwa House Group lies with our stake-
holders. It is our hope that our stakeholders will create
the future of Japanese society together with the Daiwa
House Group by connecting their hearts.

Takeo Higuchi

Chairman and CEQ

Daiwa House Group 19



Keniji Murakami
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Message from the COO

“Challenge 2005” Medium-Term Management Plan

— Creating Lasting Bonds, with
"Endless Management”as Our Core Strategy

The Daiwa House Group, which has grown to a scale of
30,000 employees and which is steadily diversifying its
business activities, sees itself in the next half-century as a
Group that will continue to co-create value for individuals,
communities, and people’s lives, Today, with the arrival of a
new Japanese society, we are at a turning point. We must
take a new look at our businesses that, based on supplying
housing, have diversified and expanded since our found-
ing. We intend to remain a unified group that can contin-
ue to grow forever into a new multi-business enterprise. In
the first year of our second half-century we have created a
new corporate symbol — the “Endless Heart”— signifying
the reliability of our Group companies and the promise of

Group Management Vision

Connecting Hearts

Our Target Business Model

Co-creating value for individuals,

endless service. We have also formulated “Challenge 2005,
a medium-term management plan for the next three
years, with targets for fiscal 2007 (the last year of the plan)
of ¥1.7 trillion in sales, ¥100 billion in recurring income, and
return on equity of 9% or more.

To achieve these goals, we in the Daiwa House Group
have designed a Groupwide strategy to greatly expand
our operations with “Endless Management” as our core
activity in diverse areas — in business and lifestyle-
support services as well as housing. We have started these
activities to create lasting bonds with our custormers.

New Group Symbol

Endiess Heart

communities and people’s lifestyles

Highlights o'f.Our Business

Single-family houses Rental apartment  Condominiums Retail and Distribution and Resort hotel users Home center
buildings wholesale facilities  medical and nursing {per year) customer club members
care facilities
480,000 620,000 50,000 24,000 2,600 4.27 million 2.27 million

{Aggregate to1al of rouses, condominiums and ather facitities completed as of March 2005)
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Three broad objectives: growth, enhanced efficiency,

and a stronger management base

To implement our medium-term management plan,
“Challenge 2005," I have drawn up nine strategies to as-
sist in achieving our three broad objectives — growth
strategies, efficiency boosting strategies, and strategies
for strengthening our management base. In particular,
we plan to thoroughly review and reorganize our busi-
ness portfolic with a focus on profitability and efficiency,
clearly positioning each individual business in terms of
importance. By so doing, we will be able 1o allocate man-
agement resources in a more balanced way, and thereby
realize the optimum portfolio.

Our Endless Management System, which constitutes the
core of our strategy, will unite all the Group's wide variety
of business categories in a concerted drive to realize a
customer-centric value-creation business style. By build-
ing a systern that brings forth synergistic effects, we will
be able to maximize the Group'’s potential.

Firstly, the priority for our core business of housing is to
expand our market share in Tokyo and the surrounding
region. We must effectively respond to newly emerging
customer needs, such as the ongoing trend toward a
return to the inner city, as consumers take advantage of
the fall in land prices. We must focus on providing new
housing to meet the needs of people in their early 30s,
who are the children of the baby boomer generation. For

Daiwa House Group
Medium-Term Management Plan “Challenge 2005”

this reason, the Daiwa House Group is working together
to create a system offering a range of products and
services, from construction of new housing to lifestyle
services after a horne is purchased. We are also building
a system to operate and manage customers’ assets that
will maintain the value of housing assets.

In our condominium development division, we are work-
ing to create a good living environment in provincial
cities throughout Japan, by using our sales branches
nationwide to obtain and utilize information on land
owned by local governments. The rental housing market
is expected to expand, as, spurred by a low interest-rate
policy, real estate investment attracts greater attention.
The single-person household market is also expanding.
Thus Daiwa House Group companies must work cohe-
sively to strengthen our management support services
system — from tenant mediation 10 asset management
— as well as provide these markets with housing prod-
ucts in response to these new rental needs.

The market for home renovation is expected t¢ expand
to ¥10 trillion. The Company aims to make its renovation
business independent by revitalizing relationships with
customers in 310,000 housing units, and offering propos-
als to meet new needs related to changes in family struc-
tures, increased longevity, and diversification of lifestyles,

1. Comprehensive portfolio management

Growth 2. Strengthen group ties in business segments
strategies

3. Develop core technologies
4. Actively invest in future growth

Basic
Strategies

5. Strengthen the procurement system Efficiency Strategies 8. Secure and train personnet
6. Review the production system boesting for strengthening g sirengthen planning functions of
7. Rebuild the distribution system strategies our mag\:s?eement management and management system
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The operating environment is severe in the commercial
construction business, another core Group business. The
market has shrunk to two-thirds that of the construction
investment peak, and every year 1% of the construction
companies in this market fail. Despite these circumstances,
we achieved a 31.4% increase in consolidated sales. This
growth was underpinned by our high technology, and
our consulting expertise. In Commercial Facilities, we are
showing our competitiveness in many markets, based
on our "LOC system,” in which we provide total support,
including land assessment for owners, business planning,
introduction of tenants, and facility construction and man-
agement. We are also honing our capabilities in the plan-
ning and developrment of corrmercial facilities, where the
need for larger-scale projects is increasing, and the con-
version business, to effectively utilize the low-cost needs
of potential tenants by matching them with properties in
our existing stock.

In the distribution facilities, the areas of concern in the
retail and distribution industries are efficiency of logistics
systems and outsourcing. We are responding to these
needs by strengthening our planning and design sys-
tems for large-scale, multi-function, high-performance
distribution centers. We also plan to introduce American
and European real estate securitization programs into
Japan at an early date, and start a land development

Message from the CCO

investment business and a development-style business
using the SPC (special-purpose company) method. In
medical and nursing care facilities, with the rise in the av-
erage age of the population and the amendment of the
Nursing Care Insurance Law, market needs have changed
from large-scale residential facilities for care of the elderly
to small-scale multi-purpose homes and satellite-type
nursing homes, Using cur Silver Age Research Center, we
have strengthened our specialized consulting business
from facility construction to business management, and
are cultivating new markets in care for the aged.

Finally, as a measure to improve overall Group efficiency,
the Company has centralized its purchasing system and
strengthened its production system to reduce costs. In
addition, our logistics system has been rebuilt as a joint
shipping system used by Group companies and suppli-
ers, 1o create a robust supply chain capable of respond-
ing flexibly to all market needs.

‘Daiwa House Group 23



Endless Management System

Single-family houses

Nihon Jyutaku Ryutu

Dalwa House Renew
Royal Home Center

Rental housing
Daiwa House Dalwa Estate

Daiwa House

Daiwa Living

Daiwa Kosho Lease .
Daiwa House Nikon Jyutaku Ryt Condominiums
Daiwa Service

Daiwa House Daiwa Service
Daiwa Kosho Lease

Daiwa House

Ma":‘a} ‘ , v y | Stock

Manage and jumnzes =~ Renovate
Used
Properties

Flow

New Properties - ‘ o Operate

Daiwa House
Daiwa Kosho Lease Daiwa Information Service
. Daiwa Royal
Daiwa House , anoy
Dalwa Kosho Lease
Daiwa House Daiwa House
aiwa House Daiwa House Cammercial

Daiwa Logistics facilities

s Daiwa House
Jukeikai
Daiwa House

Distribution facilities
Daiwa House

Daiwa House
Medical and nursing

care facilities
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The Endless Heart —

Message from the COO

a symbol of our sincere focus on meeting customers’ needs

People are our greatest asset. During the past business
year the Company set up a human resources exchange
scheme and a system in which employees can apply for
positions in different Group companies. We also imple-
mented out a leadership training program for executives
and an in-house certification plan to ensure the develop-
ment of the next generation of leaders.

In the current fiscal year, we have set up a new Customer
Satisfaction Promotion Department, a CSR Promotion
Office, a Corporate Planning Department, and a
Corporate Branding Office in Daiwa House Industry, the
company at the heart of the Group. In addition, to
strengthen our Group management strategy system for
the future, we will be increasing the number of external
auditors, expanding the Operations Audit Office, and
focusing on environmenial protection and fulfilling our
corporate social responsibilities.

It is essential for the Company's sustained existence that
it receive the support of society in general as well as the
loyalty of its stakeholders. My responsibilities are to ensure
that the principles of corporate governance are put into

practice, to provide sound and transparent management
leadership,and to increase the enterprise value of the par-
ent company and the Group.

For our principle of “Endless Heart” to have true mean-
ing for our customers, our attitude must change from
a “customer-orientation” to a deeply felt consideration
for the needs and desires of our customers. This means
paying close and individual attention to each and every
customer, because each customer is important. | will do
my utmost to ensure that this new corporate orientation
is followed in all aspects of our operations. | look forward
to enjoying the continued support of our stakeholders as
we expand our business into a unified, yet multifaceted,
corporate group.

Kenji Murakami
President and COO
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Message from the CFO

Our consolidated
financial statements
at a glance

{3 Net sales increase mainly due to inclusion
of Daiwa Kosho Lease in the scope of
consolidation

Net income increase due o revenue
increase and decline in SG&A ratio

@ increase in cash and cash equivalents
due to increases in operating and
financing cash flows combined, more
than offsetting an outflow from investing
activities

€% Expansion of cash and cash equivalents
due to increase in cash flows



Message from the CFO

Consolidated statements of Income ~~ Milansotyen ‘Consolidated balance sheets  wilionsofyen |
iAccoum title 2005 Yoy Change Account title ’ 2005 Yoy Change
T iNet sales 1,365914 141,266 Cash and cash f.-}:.v;u!v;\—erm 7‘56%—1 o 891 S'
Operating income 67349 8,188 Current assets “ 61 251:3; o 1 16,2§2
income before i»".CCr"\ETZ|X{“;;;IT(;!1?111()I:Y§<’ iPlerests 63,108 (4,789) V'g&;)!opt%ﬂy, plant and equipment 441,388 97,120
7 [Net income 40,262 3005 Short-terrm bank loans 13175 12625
& Current portion of long-term dabr 1,368 1,317
Consolidated statements of cash flows Millions of yen Total current liabilities 385,256 105,803
Account title 2005 Yoy Change Long-term debt 6,555 5-,644
income before income taxes 63,108 (4,789) "Yotai long-term liabilities 377642 81,380
iNet cash provided by operating activities 56,095 (13,564) Minority interests 71,799 52406
Net cash used in investing activities (53,069) (27.132) Retained earnings 325,893 12678
iNet cash provided by financing activities 5,889 12,015 Shareholders' equity 524,110 31,060
»iCash and cash equivalents,end of year 150,461 8915 Total 1,358,807 271,149

| am pleased to report that, for the period under review, sum of ¥150 billion for investment in developing our

the Daiwa House Group registered its highest level of sales real estate business, and for conducting M&As and mak-

of the past decade. Net income for the term rose 8.1% ing business alliances as appropriate, with the objective of
year-on-year, to ¥40,262 million (US$376 million) on a con- achieving a fruitful synergy with our existing businesses.

solidated basis, while the return on equity reached 7.9%.
The main factors behind these successes were increased
sales by most companies in the Group and the inclusion
of Daiwa Kosho Lease within the scope of consolidation,
effective from the second half of the term, as a means of
strengthening the integrated management of the Group
as a whole In view of our strong business performance, we
decided 1o pay an annual dividend for the reporting period In the spirit represented by the Daiwa House Group's
of ¥17 per share, an increase of ¥2 over the fiscal 2004 figure. newly adopted symbol — the Endless Heart — | intend
to devote my efforts to more fully integrating the man-
agement of the Group; to ensuring that the financial
statements of Daiwa House Industry and its consolidated
subsidiaries are as transparent as possible, and that they
more accurately reflect the true financial position; and
to designing and pushing through financial measures
focused on the central role of cash flow. | pledge to work
to improve the enterprise value of Daiwa House and the
whaole Group, and thus realize higher profit returns to their
shareholders. Over the short term, | hope to achieve the
sort of solid growth that will raise our return on equity to
9% or more by fiscal 2007.

Moreover, we are also actively investing in the develop-
ment of core technologies, the strengthening of cur
system for the design and practical implementation of
management strategies, and the raising of the Group’s
brand profile. In these ways, we are laying the groundwork
for greater corporate dynamism in the future.

Because of the nature of the construction and real estate
businesses in which the Group is mainly engaged, which
are currently characterized by rising construction costs
and a high dependence on bank loans, on the balance
sheet of the Daiwa House Group borrowings are equiva-
lent to 14.0% of cash and deposits. This, as well as our eg-
uity ratio (ratio of shareholders equity as a percentage of
total assets) of 38.6%, is well above the average for listed
Japanese companies (ratio of borrowings to cash and
deposits of 55.5%, equity ratio of 30.4% {figures as of end
of March 2005)). Our debt/equity ratio (interest-bearing
debt/shareholders’ equity) stood at 4.0% including long-
term debt, meaning that Daiwa House Group remains
essentially debt-free. From now on, | will strengthen my
efforts to realize a sounder financial position.

Thanks to our healthy financial position, in our current Tetsuji Ogawa
medium-term management plan we have allocated the Executive Vice President and CFO
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Corporate Management

As of June 29, 2005

Board of directors and corporate auditors

i i

Takeo Higuchi* Kenji Murakami* Mitsuo Funatsu* Tamio Ishibashi*
Chairman and CEO President and COO Executive Vice President Executive Vice President

Kimitaka Kbmatsu Takashi vl:J'zui Hiroshi Azuma Osami Nishikawa

Managing Director Managing Director Managing Director Managing Director

*Representative Director

Presidents of principal subsidiaries and affiliates

PER

Mutsuo Kajimoto Kenji It Katsuyoshi Tateno Isao Kusunoki Hiromi Yamane Minoru Fﬁjita

Daiwa Kosho Lease Daiwa Rakuda (ndustry Daiwa Logistics Co., Ltd. Oaiwa Living Co, Ltd. Oaiwa Service Co, Ltd. Nihon Jyutaku Ryutu
Co, Ltd. Co. Ltd. Co, Lid.
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Masanori Nishio

Royal Home Center

Co. Ltd.

all»

Tetsuji Ogawa*
Executive Vice President and CFO

Shigeo Otsuka

Managing Director

Tsuyoshi Ochi
Daiwa Royai Co, Ltd.

Takuya Ishibashi

Executive Managing Director

B

Tatsushi Nishimura
Managing Director

H
Masahiro Sakakura

Daiwa Information Services
Co., Ltd.

Naotake Ohno

Executive Managing Director

Takeshi Kajimoto
Managing Director

Directors

Tadashi Murakaku
Seiki Nishi

Tsugio Hamada
Chiyohiro Aoyagi
Yoshiharu Noto
Takashi Hama

Corporate Auditors {standing)

Toshihiko Emi
L Eiichi Takeda
Yoshiaki Takamura Yoshikazu Tano
Managing Director N
Corporate auditor
Hiromi Doi
Kazuhiro lida
Kiichiro lwasaki
s
(e ;
Y TN
@t
4 i ’2.
Toshihiro Yokota Keiichi Honda

Loc Development Co., Ltd.

Daiwa Resort Co., Ltd.

Daiwa House Group 29



Endless Heart Line

DaiwaHouse.
Group




O O O O

DaiwaHouse.

Daiwa House Group

Daiwa House Industry Co,, Ltd.

Daiwalease.

Daiwa House Group

Daiwa Kosho Lease Co,, Ltd,
Leasing of temporary puildings
Trading of real astate

Leasing/uading of machines
and tools/veh

Daiwa Logistics .

Daiwa House Group

Daiwa Logistics Co, Ltd.

Trucking of car
packing

Seti

> and brokerage of real estate

Daiwaliving.

Daiwa House Group

Daiwa Living Co., Ltd.

Management/operation of
rental housing

Subcaniractor fur renovation work
Sale of goods

tasurance agency

managemen: nstructon/

sales agency of gensn reering work)
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DaiwaRakuda.. DaiwaRenew.
Daiwa House Group Daiwa House Group

Daiwa Service.

Daiwa House Group

DaiwaRoyal.

Daiwa House Group

Daiwa Rakuda Industry Co., Ltd.
Manufacture/sate of housin
components/office f

Daiwa House Renew Co., Ltd. Daiwa Service Co, Ltd.

aguipment/ Sps

Daiwa Royal Co,, Ltd.
Spacified manpower gispatch business

Managemeni/building and repair of g related to
12, e i ommarcial buildings/shops/offices/hoiels/ use of real estat
18,18 ontracier for aditon and betierment veark commzrcial bulldings/shops/ofices/hoiels 1se o reai estate
condsminiums, e,

Brokerage/managament of real estate
Manpower dispatching Cpetation of business hotels
Packing/transport of goods to e moved
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Daiwalnfo.Service.

Daiwa House Group

Daiwa Information Services Co., Ltd.
Lease and rental of real estate

Cperaticn of shepping centers

O O O

DaiwaEstate. DaiwaEnergy . Nihon JyutakuRyutu.

Daiwa House Group Daiwa House Group Daiwa House Group

Daiwa Energy Co. Ltd. Nihon Jyutaku Ryutu Co,, Ltd.
Business to pramaote enargy-saving and
energy s2ving Subcontracior for co
design, constru

of constr

feal estare

Daiwa Estate Co., Ltd.
Brokerage/eppra

YCLion work/
ang supeivision

oo

Real estate brokerag

managemaent business (o re

ress/housing
of environmental

0N work

Development of bu
envircnmental produc
onsciousness and environmenial presarvation

Managament of renia
“tion of construction —
07 0F Cof ’,“‘m‘“ Cordominium salss
ced under

Insurance agency

Planning/design/consin
f 25 and other business pre:
the articies of incorporation
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Business Outline

DaiwaHouse..
Group

Sales by segment

& Housing 62.3%
= Commercial construction 26.0%
B Resort hotels 4.1%
T1Home center business  4.2%
2 Other businesses 3.4%
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Housing, the core business of the Daiwa
House Group, accounted for 62.3% of
total sales. Qur activity in this field, which
provides homes with individual needs in
rmind, ranges from construction of various
forms of housing to renovation, and from
real-estate agency services to property
rmanagement.

Overview of Fiscal 2004

The number of housing starts increased
1.7% from the previous term. With the
trend toward recovery continuing from
the previous year, we developed and
provided products with increased basic
efficiency and the quality being sought
in housing to respond to a succession of
natural disasters.

Sales

¥ billion
1000

03

Sales breakdown

% Single-family houses  45.8%

. Rertal housing 35.8%
@ Condominiums 15.4%
Z Home renovations 3.0%

Commercial construction, accounting for
26.0% of total Group sales, has two divi-
sions, the commercial facilities business,
which constructs suburban commercial fa-
cilities, and the distribution and medical &
nursing care facifities business, which plans,
constructs and manages distribution facili-
ties and medical and nursing care facitities.

Qverview of Fiscal 2004

Against the backdrop of the economic
recovery and a significant increase in
investment by private-sector firms in
facilities and construction, wa fully utilized
our specialized knowledge, abundant land
information resources, ang consulting
abilities to provide facilities that met the
needs of customers.

¥billion
400

300

200

100

03 04

~ 0\ [GCommercial facilities  67.2%

" Distribution and medical and
nursing care facilities  32.8%



Business Qutline

Under the theme of “bringing people into
close communion with nature and region-
al cultures,” we manage 29 resort hotels
and 10 golf courses throughout Japan.This
business accounts for 4.1% of total sales.

Overview of the Fiscal 2004

Needs for leisure services such as resort
hotels and golf courses are becoming
more diversified. During the period under
review, we worked 1o raise customer satis-
faction by providing high-quality services
based on the theme of "Food Safety and
Health.”

¥ hillion

We operate 39 home centers that carry an
average of over 50,000 items. The centers
are used by a wide spectrum of customers,
from consumers 10 businesses. Home cen-
ter sales accounted for 4.2% of total sales.

Overview of Fiscal 2004

Cur hormne centers provide both specialists’

know-how and a multiplicity of goods for
daily fife. Arnid the progressive restructur-
ing of the industry, we are siming to boost
revenue and distance ourselves from our
rivals through greater distinctiveness. To
this end, we opened new centers, and took
steps to enhance our specialist expertise.

¥ bittion
60

43

-y

0 ' 5

Sales breakdown

/‘ "'\’\\ 2 Hotels 93.0%
1Golf courses 7.0%
k1 2003, the Resort Hotels business {3 ¢ cal 2004} was

renamed the Res teis ard Sports business.

03 04 05

Sales breakdown

L Merchandising 942
" Renovation 5.8

The Group is developing businesses in
various fields that support people, com-
munities and kfestyles, These include the
logistics business, building and automobile
leasing, business hotels, and construction
materials manufacturing and sales, The
Group's Other businesses segment ac-
counts for 3.4% of its total sales.

Overview of Fiscal 2004

Arnong the wide range of daily life-related
and miscellaneous services performed by
this division, targeted at both consumers
and corporations, during the reporting pe-
riod we put increased focus on areas with
strong growth potential, such as distribu-
tion and logistics services and business
hotel chain operations, deliberately involv-
ing as many Group companies as possible
SO as to maximize intra-Group synergy.

¥billion

Business category

» Production and sale of building materials
« Distribution business
= Urban hotel business, etc.
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Housing

Sales

¥854.5 biltion (v-on-y 67%)

Operating income
¥49.7 billion (v-on-y +31%)

Against the backdrop of a haltin the decline
of real-estate prices in urban centers and an
extension of low interest rate policies and
housing loan tax reductions, demand for
housing is increasing and housing starts
" rose year-on-year 1.7%.This is the second
straight year of positive movement, as the
housing industry continues o recover. The
single-family housing division is providing
products to respond to diverse needs ac-
companying changes in lifestyle and family
makeup, in addition to increasing the basic
efficiency of housing. The rental housing di-
vision put on sale rental housing that can
be efficiently constructed on small and un-
usually shaped building sites and featured
improvements in design and interior qual-
ity. The condominium division announced
high-rise projects and has incorporated
construction systems that increase the asset
value of condominiums.
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Housing

Single-Family Houses

The single-family housing division is providing, based on the keywaords "security, reliability, trust.” a broad
range of products from steel framed and traditional wooden housing to iwo-by-four method housing. The
contracted housing business aims to provide housing conforming to the individual lifestyles of customers.
The single-family house subdivision business is engaged in activities from the sale of houses with land to
the provision of houses in lot units aimed at the revitalization of town communities.

Rental Housing

Qur rental housing division provides various services for the provision of housing appropriate for commercial
purposes and for the stable management of rental housing to owners of land suitable for rental housing
management. In addition 1o conventional rental housing, including side-corridor type and central-staircase
type apartments, maisonette-type dwellings and stack-on type housing,in accordance with the diverse needs
of occupants, the rental apartment buildings division is also developing comprehensive owner support
operations such as services 1o attract tenants and management services.

Condominiums :

Qur condominium division is developing urban-type condominiums and high-rise condominiums from
metropolitan areas to regional cities. While uncovering latent market needs, we promote condominiurm
construction that gives full consideration 1o the entire community and the environment. The division is
also creating a system for the long-term and objective valuation of condominiums as assets.

Home Renovation
Our customers housing reguirements are constantly changing. As time passes and their children grow older,
house owners need modifications or extensions to their houses. Residents may also need modifications to
address environmental considerations, create barrier-free houses that afford a comfortable living space for
elderly persons, or to install information technology equipment. To meet these needs, Daiwa House leverages
its extensive know-how — the sort that only an experienced house-builder could possess — to offer a wide
range of house renovation and/or extension plans. Qur many years of experience in building houses proves
its worth in this growing business field.

Sales and operating income Number of employees and operating
income per employee

¥billion ¥ bilfion Employees ¥ million
1,000 60 12,000 8
45 8,000 - 6
500 o 30 6,000 4
T B 000 L2
0 Q 0 0
()] 02 03 04 05 01 02 03 04 05
£} Sales (left scale) T3 Number of employees (left scale)
== Operating income {right scale} = Operating income per employee {right scale)
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Sales ¥390 billion

Contracting business

Responding to needs and trends

After a period of year-on-year growth in the previcus term, hous-
ing starts in fiscal 2004 in the single-family housing new-build
market once again began 1o sfide, declining 1.5%.

tn our custom-made housing business, we are improving the
basic functionality sought in housing to respond to natural
disasters. This includes burglary prevention and earthquake-
proofing. Additionally, we are deveioning products with superior
cost performance with their simple design and rich variety of
exteriors directed towards the diversified lifestyles of second-
generation baby boomers. Also, to meet the rebuilding needs
of the over-fifty age group, we are working 10 develop high-
quality products with exterior and interior designs with a sense
of elegance based on the concept of polished luxury as well as
increased durability and insulation efficiency.

Housing sales
(Daiwa House Industry, non-consolidated)

Aiming at improvements in product value

We intend to promote product development focused on im-
proved durability and increased housing functionality, reflecting
the perspectives of the residents for structure and function. Ad-
ditionally, in order 10 develop marketing strategies for specific re-
gion or communities along with aged-based strategies, we plan
to close its 50 general display sites over three years while aggres-
sively developing a movable display site, “Delight,” throughout
Japan in which a model house is built on a residential area. We
are also strengthening its Internet sales direcied toward younger
people. in Living Salons situated in strategic locations, we are
increasing customer satisfaction and closing rates by providing
meticulous service from specialist staff that are able ¢ respond
to the need for consultations on construction, funding and other
issues. In this way, we aim 10 increase the strength of the Daiwa
House brand and expand its market.

Number of houses sold
(Daiwa House Industry, non-cansolidated)

¥ billion Units
400 20,000
S0 _H 15000
—_——
200 i 2000
W 5000
0 3

01 02 03 04 05
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Housing

Subdivisions

Revitalizing urban communities

in fiscal 2004, the national number of single-family housing
subdivision starts were in the plus column for the second year
in a row with a year-on-year increase of 7.8%. We are working
to strengthen the development and provision of properties
directed towards first-time home buyers who do not own land,
principally people in their early thirties. These can be purchased
for comparatively fow prices. This is in addition to our efforts to
provide homes to fandowners and custorners wishing to rebuild.

Our original subdivision properties,"Floral Avenue,” are being well
received throughout Japan, with the comprehensive revitaliza-
tion of urban communities in mind. They incorporate the enrich-
meant of communities by promoting industriaf activity and the
promotion of employment, welfare services, and, the creation of
cultural and regional interchange functions.

Business efficiency through concentration and selection

Having accurately grasped customer trends, the Company will
focus on the planning and development of subdivision products,
while working to acquire and utilize information on land and
residential property selection that corresponds to the needs of
customers. We aim to develop strategy for large urban centers
and to maintain and improve home environment value through
the utilization of a community-based commission sales agent
system, For this purpose as well, we are consolidating owner
associations established per region and per housing brand and
preparing a system for exchanging information. At the same
time we intend to reduce the number of sales offices by concen-
trating and selecting offices principally located in urban centers.
Also, we are focusing our energies on sales employee training in
programs ranging from life-planning to funding and tax knowl-
edge. We are also promoting sales activities that respond to the
needs of customers.

Aggregate of houses Share of single-family house market Indices of housing sales and
{Daiwa House Industry.non-censolidated) {FY2003) construction starts
Thousands of units ) ?’i " \,\_\/ 2001=100
y .
0 /7 RN 100
601 i/ v % [ Dalwa House 2.40%
j [ 502,342 .y .
. units ] iTop S companies  13.80%
450 - / 3Othercompanies 86.20% 75
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== Annual housing sales by Daiwa House
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Sales ¥304.6 bhillion

Developing products to suit different lifestyles

Against a backdrop of continued high interest in real estate
investment due to sluggish stock prices and low interest rates
in financial markets, the rental apartment buildings market in fis-
cal year 2004 saw continued brisk businass activity, with 2 1.9%
increase in rental housing construction starts, the fourth year
of continued growth. In this market environment, we provided
suburban family-oriented large-scale projects such as “Friendly
Square” 1o families desiring rental homes, At the same time, rec-
ognizing the increasing rate of rental property occupancy by
singles, we emphasized marketing of D-Room Single Life, and
sold products directed towards singles with a full range of fa-
cilities and large floor areas. Additionally, we faunched our urban-
type three-story rental apartment buildings offering fire-resistant
construction that can be efficiently constructed in urban areas
and can be used by both famifies and singles.

Aggregate rental housing sales
(Daiwa House Industry, non-consoclidated)

A full range of owner support services

in the rental housing business, we understand that apartment
post-key-transfer rental housing and asset management support
is a critical business factor. Given this understanding, we deployed
special staff at our sales offices for handling property owners we
have business with, and sought to enhance our owners’ associa-
tion composed of over 12,000 members. We also expanded the
substance of our total support system, “DAPS," which supparts
rental housing management from three perspectives, facilities
management, business management support, and asset man-
agement support. in particular, the “D-RoomChintai” website
dedicated to rental properties built by the Company as a mea-
sure to secure tenants continues to be strengthened with access
t0 the site increasing by 2.5 times year-cn-year during the period
when most tenants moved into apartments (March to May),

Number of rental apartments sold
(Daiwa House Industry, non-consolidated)

#biflion Units
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Housing

Concentrating sales efforts on the three metropolitan areas

The rental housing market is showing significant growth in the
three major metropolitan areas and the trend toward their re-
vival will continue into the future. Given this revival, we have set
the goal of providing 4,000 apartment units in the three major
metropolitan areas and 7,000 units nationally over the next three
years. To do this, we will concentrate our human resources on
urban centers and establish sales offices specializing in medium-
height and high-rise buildings. We plan to aggressively use lease-
hold properties to build rental housing in urban areas. To respond
o the diversified needs of occupants, we aim to provide rental
housing which even takes intc consideration renovation while
employing not only heretofore factory-based production meth-
ods, but aiso introducing general construction-based production
methods. In particular, we are promoting business development
that puts energy into the development and sales of products
directed towards second-generation baby toomer singles and
newlyweds.

Aggregate of rental apartments

(Daiwa House Industry, non-consolidated) (FY2003)
Thousands of units e
600 - I ;
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Share of rental apartment market

Strengthening the “D-Room” brand and services

in the future, while correctly ascertaining rental housing market
trends frorm both cwners' and occupants’ perspectives, we will
uncover latent demand and will promote the development of
quality products reflecting greater awarenass of the lifestyles of
occupants. Furthermore, by seeking to strengthen management
support and facifities management support for existing owners
of rental apartment buildings who are trying to establish stable
management, we aim 1o strengthen the development the "D-
Room (Daiwa House's rental apartment buildings)” brand and
expand our market share. Additionally, to respond to landowners’
various needs, we are advancing proposals for effective methods
for the utilization of assets through real estate securitization, such
as cur exclusive non-recourse loan, "Partner Plus - Limited Mart-
gage Apartment Loan,” introduced in February, 2005. Further-
more, by increasing staff and expanding training systems, we plan
to develop more complete community-based management.

Indices of rental apartment sales and
construction starts

2001=100
130
3 Daiwa House 9.70%
-7 Top 5 companies  29.40%
~ Other companies  70.60% 120
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= Annual rental apartment sales by Daiwa House
= Annual rental apartment starts (nationwide)
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Sales ¥130.9 hillion

Providing products for diversifying needs

Accompanying the wave of people returning to urban areas
and dernand due 1o urban redevelopment, the condominium
market in fiscal 2004 grew 2.5% and maintained two straight
years of positive growth. Our condominium division, in addition
o constructing and selling high-rise condominiums principally
in urban areas, has worked 10 provide products giving consid-
eration to permanent residence with specifications that enable
changes in living plans in response to changes in lifestyle that
accornpany aging. We have also striven to develop added-
value condominiums with increased burglary prevention and
earthquake-absorbing and dampening technologies, and
information system infrastructures. Additionally, the division has
developed multiplex condominium projects in which medical
and cornmercial facilities are jointly developed with the objec-
tive of improving the social infrastructure,

Condominium sales
(Daiwa House Industry, non-consolidated)

B

Introduction of an asset value support system

The property value of a condominium varies widely not only as a
result of location and price, but also because of its maintenance
management and saleability. For this reason, in our D's series
condominiums, we introduced "D’ File"to record the basic func-
tions and regular maintenance history of the condominiums
with the objective of improving the property’s quality manage-
ment and asset value. In fiscal 2004 we began to jointly develop
and introduce with the group company real estate agency firm,
Nikon Jyutaku Ryutu Co, Ltd and the housing management firm,
Daiwa Service Co..L1d, 3 D’ Bridge” condominium asset support
system that incorporates into "D’ File" inspections by third-party
organizations, Through the introduction of “D's Bridge,” condo-
minium owners have become able to utilize comprehensive as-
set planning including renovation and rental agency services.

Number of condominiums sold
(Daivia House Industry, non-consolidated)

¥ billion Units
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Housing

Developing a further segmented sales strategy

We are developing strategies 2ppropriate 1o each age group and
region as a means of cultivating new customers. in particular, in
relation to compact condominiums® centered in urban areas,
we are strengthening sales activities centering on a designated
sales force utilizing the Internet 1o promote sales. This is because
the buyers of compact condominiums are people in their twen-
ties and thirties with good Intemnet skills. The closing rate via the
Internet by younger people is increasing annually, and such sales
accounted for 18% of tota! clasings in fscal 2004 (a year-on-year
increase of 8%). On the other hand, in refation to the over-40
and senior age group, we are selling through showrooms and
conventional straightforward sales activities, While on one
hand we are strengthening sales promotion activities through
Condominium Friendship Clubs, we are also promoting market
research through members of the Club, including surrounding
residents, and promoting plans and developments that accu-
rately reflect customer needs.

* The sobriquet of small condorniniums with an exclusive area of use of over 30 sq.
meters and less than 50 sg.meters

Aggregate of condominiums
{Daiwa House Industry, non-consolidatad;

Area breakdown of condominium sales

Aggressive investment in long-term, large-scale projects

Through the pursuit of “Building Homes as Quality Social Assets
which bring to fruition an Abundant Life and Residence in the
21st Century," we are developing a condominiums business that
incorporates the maintenance of a secure and pleasant social
infrastructure. For example, in large-scale projects composed of
300 to 500 units, we are developing not just individual residenc-
es, but also complex facilities and commercial facilities. We are
promating them in conjunction with other divisions to improve
the convenience of the environment surrounding the homes We
are not only working to increase the value-added of condomini-
ums, but are also giving consideration to the coexistence of city
life and the natural environment. We are therefore aggressively
developing properties with next-generation energy-saving stan-
dards as standard specifications with the objective of reducing
CO2 emissians from home air conditioning and heating.

indices of condominium sales and
construction starts

Thousands of units 2001=100
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= Annual condominium sales by Daiwa House
= Annual condominium starts (nationwide)
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Sales ¥25.2 billion

Using the Group’s stock of property

Japan has become an aging society with fewer children, and
because of the continually increasing stock and usable life of
housing, the number of home expansion and renovation proj-
ects is increasing annually. Accordingly, the renovation market
shows steady growth. In this environment, cur renovation
division, together with the newly established company Daiwa
House Renew Co, Ltd. in October 2003, is developing the home
renovation business from the perspective of “enhancing ame-
nities,"“home security,”"care for family members,” and "health
consciousness.” We are working to uncover renovation projects
in our stock of property and are providing renovation plans 1o
improve home safety and comfort. Additionally, in all sales offices
in 72 locations throughout Japan, we hifed 140 new employees,
principally individuals with construction and rencvation experi-
ence, in fiscal 2004 We have therefore prepared a structure in-
corporating both sales and technology.

wa wn

Renovation by Daiwa House
Renovation Centers

Strengthening sales abilities through training and by
increasing staff

The budget for and purpose of renovation varies greatly due to
scale, materials used, age of the residence and other factors. As
a result, to make the details and cost transparent as well as to
increase the customer's convenience, we are proposing packaged
renovation plans for roofing and fencing, and interior and plumb-
ing renovation, These renovation plans are being well received,
Also, in order to rapidly respond to needs such as changes in
family composition, we are strengthening our sales structure
using a community-based approach to be able to personally
know the customer and changes in the customer’s life circum-
stances, and to immediately understand the demand. Further-
more, we are establishing “expansion and rencvation sections” in
its branches and sales offices to offer renovation plans and pro-
pose new lifestyle and comfortable home options for customers,
while increasing the number of renovation specialist staff.

Scale of and prospects for housing
renovation market in Japan

{Daiwa House Industry, non-consolidated)
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Real Estate
Agency
Services

Creating a reliable, integrated system of

intermediary services

Canventionally, real estate agencies have assumed the role of
selling existing properties to people changing home and en-
couraging the marketing of homes. However, with the changes
in home environment and lifestyle, customers are seeking a
syster that is able to make flexible proposals responding to
the circumstances of the home owner, such as recommending
short-term rentals as opposed to selling in response 10 moves
motivated by job transfers. Customers are also seeking related
services such as management and maintenance. As a result, in
the agency services business, centered on the Group's real estare
agency firm, Nihon Jyutaku Ryutu, the Company is developing
packages such as "Lease Support” for the condominiums and
single-family housing rental management businesses and is
focusing its efforts on consulting services, in which customers
can freely discuss housing. We intend to offer new types of
intermediary services, such as"D’s Bridge,” to improve customers’
asset value, and will also introduce securitization of residential
real estate.

Comparison of circulation of resale
houses
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Commercial Construction

Sales

¥363.8 billion (Y-on-Y +31.4%)

Operating income
¥27.3 biliion (v-on-Y +32.2%)

Construction investment during the term
(unadjusted figures) was characterized by
government investment falling 11.1% and
private-sector investment rising 4.9% on the
back of growth in investment in both manu-
facturing and non-manufacturing indus-

tries due to the gradual economic recovery.

In this operating environment, the Group
focused commercial facilities development
along suburban arterial roads, while making
use of the Company’s information resources
and consulting abilities.

In our distribution and medical and nursing
care facilities division, construction and man-
agement support was provided in addition
to developing new products for medical and
nursing care facilities.We also strengthened our
distribution solutions by improving efficiencies
in distribution and food-related facilities and
taking full advantage of advances in service.
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The commercial facilities business provides support from planning to management of multiplex/
large scale commercial facilities through the Company's "LOC System,” which is able 1o gather and
utilize information concerning stores and land through a nationwide network. We offer land utiliza-
tion with high earnings to land owners and effective developrment of stores 1o tenant firms open-

ing stores.

butior and Medical and Nursing Care Facifities

Distribution facilities

The distribution facilities business offers total business support making full use of resources useful
in sefecting optimal locations for distribution service facilities, accumulated in our branches nation-
wide. In addition to store opening planning, construction planning and facilities management, the
Company is, a5 an asset solution, creating a comprehensive distribution business system, including
the effective utilization of idle or non-performing land properties.

Medical and nursing care facilities

The medical and nursing care fadilities business is providing optimal business planning such as
support from research and planning 1o construction and management related to hospitals and
senior care facilities. It is doing this principally through the consulting and product development
activities of the Company’s Silver Age Research Center founded in 1989, to respond to the special
needs of the super-aging scdety.”

Sales and operating income

Number of employees and operating
income per employee

¥billion ¥ billion Employees ¥ million
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e 10 1,500 S 2
0 ‘ 0 0 ‘ : 0
01 02 03 04 05 01 02 03 04 OS
Sales {left scale} © Number of employees (left scale)

Operating incame (right scale}

Operating income per employee (right scale}
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Sales ¥238.6 hillion

Actively addressing market need for multipiex/
large-scale commerdial facilities

Until relatively recently, retail store chains and restaurant/bar
chains seeking to expand their sales by opening new outlets
have concentrated on two categories of iocation: either in the
crowded shopping and entertainment areas close to railway sta-
tions, or at suburban sites by main roads, where there is space for
a large parking lot. Nowadays, however, there is a growing need
to open new outlets within muitiplex/iarge-scale commercial
facilities, such as shopping malls. Against this background, during
the reporting period the Company employed its “LOC System” to
develop nevs multipiex/large-scale commercial facilities in sub-
urban locations We will take measures to accommodate diversi-
fied multiplex/large scale commercial facilities such as the simple
type in which a2 number of independent stores face a central
parking lot, the open-type mall in which the externa! designs
of all the tenants are unified and the tenant stores are arranged
around the common-use parking lot, and the internally enclosed
type of shopping mall, where the stores face internal walkways.

Sales of commercial facifities segment
(Daiva House industry. non-consolidated)
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The conversion business

Our conversion business addresses the needs of property own-
ers who must respond 1o change circumstances, such as tenants
terminating their contracts of changes in the surrounding en-
vironment, as well as their seeking higher earnings. Demand for
this type of service is growing steadily. We are aggressively mov-
ing into the "conversion market," understood in a broad sense,
including the expansion or contraction of properties 1o suit
new uses, as well as large-scale renovation projects. This busi-
ness requires not only expertise in the construction field, but
also know-how relating to the legal aspects of the real estate
business, including an extensive acquaintance with property
rental contracts and the ability to provide legal support in clari-
fying property ownership/usage rights and resolving conflicts.
Finally, it also requires strong marketing capabilities to find the
right tenants for refurbished buildings. Given our particular ar-
eas of expertise, we feel that this is precisely the sort of market
for which we are qualified. With effect from the start of scal
2005, we have set up specialist sections at our Tokyo, Osaka, and
Nagoya offices.In three years time, we project that this business
will employ some 100 staff and generate revenues on the scale
of around ¥30 billion per annum.

Large-scale buildings in Japan
{FY2004)

7 Wholesale and retaiting 25.1%
. Manufacturing 26.2%
1 Medical and welfare 17.6%
Real estate,construction and mining 8.5%
B Restaurants and hotels 4.1%
[ Finance, telecommunications

and other services 18.5%



Making more effective use of aur land owners assodiations
As of the end of March 2005, cur Landowners Club, consisting
of our custorers, had grown 1o 5,001 members nationwide. The
overall Landowners Club is divided into 64 separate owners asso-
ciations established in the various regions of the country. Recently,
10 energize the activities of these associations, we have been orga-
nizing events held jointly by neighboring associations, and we are
also planning to hold meetings targeting female or younger land
owners. By these means, we will encourage closer relations be-
tween members of different regional owners associations, raise the
level of understanding of general economic conditions, and make
tand owners more knowledgeable about the various method
available of utilizing the value of their land assets. This, in turn, will
forge stronger bonds of loyalty between the land owners and the
Daiwa House Group. The Landowners Club is one of our most valu-
able assets: it not only promises to give us a stream of orders for
construction and intermediary services, but also has tremendous
future potential in its capacity as an informal group of individuals
interested in investment in new real estate projects. For this reason,
we will work 1o make the Club a livelier, more enjoyable organiza-
tion for all members,and use it 1o expand our business.

Subleased floorspace of commercial
construction

Development and sale of real estate investment products
The securitization of Japanese land assets, notably through the
J-REIT market, as well as the use of SPCs {special-purpose com-
panies) are just some examples of the way in which real estate
development and investrent formats are diversifying, thanks to
which the market liquidity of real estate as an investment target
has improved tremendously. However, not all fand plots can be
developed with complete assurance of adequately high returns.
We closely follow market developments in the sale of land by in-
dividuals and companies, as well as the sale of land by the govern-
ment or other public organizations. The knowledge thus gleaned
gives us a preferential position in acquining superior land proper-
ties at a relatively low price. For the effective utilization of land, we
make use of our know-how relating 1o the management of our
LOC System to focate and introduce desirable tenants. And our
expertise in multiplex/large-scale commercial facilities enables us
1o offer effective asset management services. By putting to use
the know-how we have effectively employed in our proposal-
based marketing of land utilization progiams in the management
of our own properties, we will develop and self high-value-added
real estate investment products,

Orders for large-scale commercial facilities
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¥116.4 billion

Sales

Distribution facilities

Asset utilization: partner coordination system

The construction division has aggressively promoted the con-
struction and utilization of physical distribution facilities related
to food and medical-service businesses that require specialized
knowledge. in particular, as greater efficiency in distribution
systems makes advances in the retail/distribution industry pos-
sible, and as outsourcing progresses, demand is growing for
more multifunctional and segmented services. This is generating
new business opportunities. For this reason, the Company views
distribution strategically. To make concrete land and distribu-
tion solution proposals fully utilizing information resources on a
national scale, the Cornpany is promoting a partner coordinate
system that includes distribution businesses and shippers.

1 HACCP (Hazard Anatysis Critical Contenl Points: Intemationat focdd safety management system
stanclard.

"2.D Projpact: Daiwa House Industry buys e plot of commercal use &
which then ¢
renvial contracts
Later, Daiwa Housa In
land and bulldings. tr: thi

ment Trusts (RES

J et conditions are fa

*3.FFL {Food factory Lease) Food pla G husiness, We have develoned a spedial scheme in
which Daswa House Indusiry proposes bulds and rents oul HACTPrentified food plants,

Distribution and medical and nursing

care facility construction sales
{Daiwa House Industry, non-consolidated)
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Towards comprehensive solution proposals

for the end users

In the future, the Company will nct only develop specialized
business plan proposals for construction, but will also make
proposals directed towards creating comprehensive distribution
systems that more fully take into consideration the end user. In
addition to construction plans, the Company will offer more ef-
fective comprehensive distribution systems by narrowly target-
ing firms and positively undertaking information exchanges and
will increase its business alliances.

We will also make full use of our information resources, social
networks, specialist’s know-how such as HACCP*!, which has
been cultivated through the consulting we have underiaken,
and we will promote support for distribution and food-related
facilities while introducing new schemes such as the D Project®”
real estate securitization. We also make solution proposals for dis-
tribution and food-related facifities, such as the FFL*® leasing ar-
rangement for food producing plants. Through these efforts the
Company will work to expand its market share.

Construction incorporating the HACCP
method (s of May 31, 2005)
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Medical and nursing care facilities

Consulting business centered on the Sitver Age
Research Center

Japan forecasts that in 2015 the percentage of the popula-
tion over 65 years old will reach 26%. Projections indicate that
the number of elderly suffering from senile dementia will be
2.5 million, 1.68 times greater than in 2000, giving rise to a
steady increase in demand for construction of medical and
nursing care facilities. In the construction division's medical
and nursing care business, total consuiting - from surveys and
research in the medical, senior nursing care and welfare helds
to planning, construction and management plans is being
undertaken, principally at the Company’s Silver Age Research
Center. Among these activities, sales began of the two-story for-
fee senior home product "Daiwa Reanju,” and the three-story
for-fee senior home product "Daiwa Reanju Scpra” as 50-year
anniversary products that can be said to be the compilation of
the knowledge and technologies amassed since the founding
of the Silver Age Research Center.

Global comparison of aging populations
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Towards the coming aging sediety

it is anticipated that Ministry of Health, Labour and Welfare
policies relating to medical and care facilities and legal reforms,
in particular the reform of the Medical Law and Nursing Care
Insurance Law, scheduled o take effect in April 2006, will have
a major impact on medical- and nursing care-related facilities
and will lead 1o a shift from large-scale care facilities to small
multi-functional facilities and satellite elderly nursing homes. As
a result, ahead of the full-fledged shift to 3 "grayer” society, we
develop our business in such as way as to meet the fragmentad
needs of users and to respond to the direction of legat reforms
and policies of regulatory authorities. We are also researching
the market to make a wide range of proposals to society in the
field of facilities for senior citizens in good health and welfare
businesses for other people.

Projects of the Silver Age Research Center
{as of end of March 2005)

L1 Group homes, day care, tay service facllities 46.5%
. Hospitals and clinics 31.3%
B2 Private nursing homes for the aged, etc. 14.1%

_Healthcare facilities for senior citizens,
special nursing homes,
care houses for the aged 8.1%
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Resort Hotels

Sales
¥55.7 billion (v-on-Y +4.0%)

Operating income
¥1.8 billion (v-on-y +2,202.1%)

Per capita overnight trips and numbers of days per hotel visit have been on a
downward trend in Japan, and hotel and traditional inn bankruptcies remain
at a high level. However, per household travel expenditures increased in 2004,

The Company’s Royal Hotels worked to enhance customer satisfaction
through high service standards based on extensive training of employ-

ees and creating menus making full use of local ingredients with the
theme “Food safety and health.” Occupancy rates in-

/

creased 0.7 percentage points over the previous fiscal

year thanks to the development of special plans for
day-use customers and the widening of our range
of new marriage ceremony styles.

Sales and operating income
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"Bow Wow Land" — for vacations with your dog

In the fiscal 2005, in light of the pet boom, as a new experiment
to enable guests to enjoy longer resort stays, the Kushimoto
Royal Hotel established within the hotel a "Bow Wow Land,”
comprising a dog hetel and dog run. In the future, we intend
to establish resort hotels where guests will be able to stay with
their pets and to develop these hotels throughout Japan.

Traditional New Years focds, which are popular year in, year out,
are growing as a business generating solid profits thanks to the
limited production volume. The Company is also expanding its
anniversary plans and member system, and, through each ho-
tels’ gourmet club and the strengthening of sales promotions,
will offer plans and services that encourage customers to use
its facilities numerous times over the long term.

Resort Hotels: Number of employees
and operating income per employee

Daiwa Royal Hotels: Number of wedding
facility users and number of chapels

Resort Hotels

29 hotels :
10 golf courses

“40 Resort™,” providing a higher quality resort
environment

As a future area for business expansion, based on "40 Resort”
facilities, which combine hotel and golf accommodations, the
Company is working to provide services that caters meticu-
lously to individual customers’ different origins, age brackets,
visit plans, and meal details. The aim is 1o increase per-customer
spending.

Also, at the ten goif courses the Company manages nationwide,
the Company is aggressively expanding sales directed towards
seniors and ladies in the courses’ shops, hosting competitions
to which professional golfers have been invited. We will also
make full use of our golf courses, tennis courts, fitness clubs,
resort condominiums, and mountain cabin areas, and sports
clubs managed by Nippon Athletic Service Co., Ltd, 3 new
group company member, to offer a pleasant resort experience
similar to those provided in Europe and America.

*including the Lake Yarmanaka Fujisan Royal Cottages

Daiwa Royal Hotels: Number of guests
and room occupancy rates
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Home Center Business

Sales
¥59.1 billion (v-on-Y +3.4%)

Operating income
¥0.1 billion (v-on-v -27.9%)

As the restructuring of the industry progresses
through expansion of stores, M&As, and capi-

tal tie-ups by major firms, the home center
4

industry in fiscal year 2004 expanded as
the scale of the market reached ¥3.5 tril-
lion and sales floor space grew 23.7% com-
pared with the end of 2000.

On April 1,2004 Daiwa House Industry spun off
this business, and a new company, Royal Home
Center Co., Ltd. took over its management.
We established three new centers in order to
differentiate the Company's home centers
from those of other firms and to provide the
centers with a full line-up of products. Ad-
ditionally, in November, Royal Bix was made
a consolidated subsidiary of the Company.

Sales and operating income
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Strategic business development

Despite the increase in consumer spending resulting from the
modest economic recovery, per-customer spending in this seg-
ment fell due to the major impact of competition from other
firms both within and outside of the industry as well as due
to the reguirement to display prices inclusive of consumption
tax. However, the Company is developing a product strategy
reflecting the characteristics of the localities of the centers and
with a product line-up of approximately 50,000 items at a stari-
dard center (approx. 3,300 m? and 70,000 to 100,000 items at a
superstore (approx. 8,000 m2). Within this strategy, we are focus-
ing on distinguishing the Company's home centers from other
firms’ by placing staff with specialized knowledge at "Renovation
Halls” and “Interior Counters,” and providing a full complement
of facilities. In addition to meeting the needs of consumers, the
Company is also aggressively stocking comrnercial goods to
cater to local seif-employed individuals. As a result, the number
of customers that made purchases in FY2004 climbed 4.6% to
24,1 million.

Home Center Business:
Number of employees and operating

P einter Bus e

Network 39 home
centers in Japan

Concentrating on home center renovation

in the future, we will work to strengthen competitiveness based
on existing home center business plans, and to develop centers
that offer customers a high degree of convenience. For this rea-
son, the Company is resolving major issues such as reviewing
home center in-store shopping layouts, arranging sales floors
to display products used in various aspects of daily life, securing
regular stock which cannot be found in other stores, enriching
facilities with a high degree of specialization appropriate to the
local environment, reducing the cost of materials, and raising
profit margins.

Sales breakdown

38% 33% 15% 14%
DIY goods, Interior goods, Pet Others
gardening goods furniture, supplies,
consumer electronics, sports and
daily sundries leisure
goods

Royal Home Centers:
Number of home centers and

Royal Home Centers:
Number of customers and

income per employee floorspace average sales per customer
Employees ¥ million m? Stores Thousands ¥
600 2 200,000 39 24,000 2800
450 e ~ R 150000 38 18,000 2600
300 i ] 2 100,000 37 12,000 o 2,400
BN
¢ \\\
SN I+ U S S S 50000 . 3 S0 00
o -6 0 35 0 : 2,000
01 02 03 04 05 01 02 04 05 01 02 03 04 05

7 Number of employees (left scale)
== Operating income per employee {right scale)

I Floor space {left scale)
= Number of home centers {right scale)

T CINumber of customers {left scale)
== Sales per customer a1 RHC* {right scale)
- Industry average sales per customer {right scale)
*excluding renovation
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Other Businesses
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Sales
¥104.7 billion (v-on-Y +6.5%)

Operating income
¥3.5 billion (v-on-v +25.29%)

Leasing operations showing firm growth

At Daiwa Rakuda Industry Co, Ltd, which is engaged in
the manufacture and sale of housing fixtures and furni-
ture as well as insurance sales, the construction materials
manufacturing and sales division is developing new
products such as interior stairs and working to expand
orders. In addition to arranging sales events for house
and condominium customers to buy interior accessories,
we have enhanced our unique range of curtains. The
space systerns division is aggressively working to de-
velop sales in the interior business and interior finishing
work for medical and nursing care facilities. Additionally,
the leasing division is strengthening its business of rent-
ing out for various events and to governmental bodies
equipment and fixtures and fittings used in developers’
condominium showrooms.

Sales and operating income

¥ billion ¥billion
128 4
90 3
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_ Sales (left scale)
= Operating income {right scale)
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Other Businesses

15 distribution centers of
Daiwa Logistics

Solid growth in the logistics business

In circumstances in which there is growing demand in the
retail and wholesaling industries for cutsourcing and the rede-
velopment of goods distribution systems, Daiwa Logistics Co.,
Ltd. is moving forward with a consolidation of branch offices
to achieve greater operational efficiency. We also established
special business offices in the Tokyo area to provide speedier
goods distribution and to widen our total service menu to
meet the diversifying needs of corporate customers in the capi-
tal and the surrounding region. We also decided to construct
logistics centers in eight focations throughout Japan, of which
two are already in operation. We are constructing a network of
i logistics centers to provide not only the transport and distribu-
| tion of housing materials, but also logistics services for our retail
sector customers, with aim of increasing the number of orders.
Building on this success, we will continue to offer logistics ser-
vices designed with our users needs in mind.

e wn o xond woer R

Anticipated growth in business hotels

In this area of the hotel business, which focuses on business-
use hotels located in urban areas, we are reducing overall prices,
expanding our user base and moving forward with Internet
capabilities.In the past fiscal year,our Roynet Hotel business, which
undertook a review of its afliance with Daiwa Resort (the operator
of the Daiwa Royal Haotel chain), worked to expand the range of
targeted customers to couples and families, to increase internet
reservations, and provide rooms with Internet capability. During
the reporting term, this segment consisted of two Daiwa Roynet
Hotels — the Royton Sapporo Hotel and the Osaka Dai-lchi Hotel
(Osaka Marubiru) — which came under the Royton umbrella in
Novemnber 2004.This gave us 2 total of four hotels in this business,
which is off 1o a new start. Starting in the current term we will
pursue the goal of opening several hotels per year.
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Corporate Social Responsibility

The basic philosophy of the Daiwa House Group in its corporate activities is to O
contribute to society through its business by properly understanding the life- -
styles of people and the demands of society. Thus, we are active across a broad
scope of operations based on our belief that corporate activities seeking the ideal
lifestyle for the next generation are synonymous with the practice of corporate
social responsibility {CSR). The Group is pursuing a wide spectrum of business ac-
tivities with the goal of realizing a sustainable society that accords due respect to

the dignity and diversity of each individual.

The Daiwa House Group recognizes that the fulfillment of its
social responsibilizies is an important issue for management,
and therefore takes 3 systematic and unified approach to en-
vironmental protection and the provision of safe and secure
preducts and services. In addition, we are committed to educat-
ing our staff in corporate ethics, compliance and human rights.
For these purposes, we established the CSR Promotion
Preparatory Office at Daiwa House Industry in April 2004 {it was
reorganized into the CSR Promotion Office in 2005) to bolster
our CSR system,

We have also standardized our Management Vision, Employee
Charter, and logo throughout the Group since fiscal 2005, Thus,

CSR Guidelines of the Daiwa House Group

Founding Spirit —

Social contribution through
conduct of business

J’ CSR key

Baiwa House Groupwide CSR phrase
Co-creating
T a brighter

The Daiwa House Group future

Management Vision
Connecting Hearts

The Group that creates value for people,
their communilics, and their lifestyles —
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CSR Report of the

Daiwa House Group

We recently published the CSR
Report 2005, which explains
the principles and the content
of CSR activities of the Daiwa
House Group, to clearly convey
them to the general public.
{Available in Japanese only.)

the entire Group will have common guideiines and perception
and actively reach out to ali stakeholders and society as a unit to
strengthen our ties with thern and reinforce the confidence with

which they view our activities.

technologies and know-how.

2. Understand the needs of the Daiwa House Group through
communication and engagement with stakeholders and
respond to them as a corporate citizen.

3. Endeavor to establish corporate ethics and compliance.

Employees

Daiwa House IR RIS

:LJ Creating Together j——

Achieving CSR

through business
activities

Individual cusiomer

Corporate

Flaying our
of the ethics &

partin protecting
the environment

Corporate clients

Sharehoiders

Group

Commurity
Society
Doing our duty
. | 3saresponsible
corporate citizen

7
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Continuously perfecting compliance is one of the most critical
tasks for management, as our business is closely connected
with daily life.In fiscal 2004, we ensured the full adoption of the
Company Code of Ethics of the Daiwa House Group and Behav-
ioral Guidelines, which were established in April 2004 and serve
as rules for ethics and the conduct of the Group. We also devel-
oped an internal reporting system (corporate ethics helpling)
in Aprit 2004. Over the 15 manths since then, the helpline has
dealt with an average of seven calls per month,

Corporate Ethics Guidelines of the Daiwa House Group

Corporate Social Responsibility

With the unification of Group brands in April 2005, we have
reconfirmed our commitment to compliance with all laws and
regulations, and to fair and sincere conduct that meets the
expectations of society, by each and every employee of all
Group companies.

Respect for human rights

Improvement of ethics

Construction of
an ideal working environment

Behavioral

Fair competition

Non-involvement with
criminal organizations

Guidelines

Compliance with laws
and regulations

Construction of good
relationships with suppliers

Environmental protetion

Commitment to the environment

Conduct to win the
confidence of customers
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Daiwa House Group has been improving corporate governance, adopting a basic policy of establishing
a transparent and efficient management system that facilitates fast and accurate decision-making. We
will enhance our decision-making and internal controlling systems to set a basic direction for corporate
management.

Major initiatives to improve corporate governance

June 1999 Introduction of an executive officer system

June 2001 Directors'term of office shortened from twa years to one year

June 2004 Revision of the Articles of Incorporation to allow the acquisition of Company’s own shares solely by resolution of the Board of Direciors

1
t

EestRREy .
i el VI e if L

June 2002 Online disclosure of invitations to shareholders'meetings (Japanese/English
August 2003 First quarterly disclosure of business performance

June 2005 Termination of lump-sum retirement payment system for directors and corporate auditors (switch to performance-linked
compensation system)

- - e B - s d

June 2003 One outside auditor added 1o the board of corporate auditors, making five members (three of whom are outside auditors)

June 2005 Number of corporate auditors increased from two 1o three out of the total of six members of the Board of Corporate Auditors

Corporate governance system
As of June 30, 2005

Risk Maragement Committee I Corporate Ethics Helpline
xResearch
oCorrective Measures

*Consult
’ xNotify
wAccuse
T R ) Appoint Chairman
(esing o Sher: i il . 8:1 Divisions
e B ol resident
_ Board of Directors
Departments
Aopoint TAudir Aud Offices/Branches
ppoin - it
————————)I Board of Corporate Auditors f——L)
Appoint Account Auditin [
—>l Certified Public Accountants } g
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Corporate Social Responsibility

A D Y Iy
UGS

The protection of personal information has become an issue of great social urgency. As Daiwa House
Industry holds a large amount of information — both personal and corporate — relating to its customers,
we have set forth strict policies on the management of such information at all Group companies, and have
designed detailed administrative procedures to be followed in all conceivable circumstances. In these

ways, we are ensuing that our risk management system in this field is fully reliable.

With respect to risk management, an issue of increasing impor-
tance following the full enactment of the Personal Information
Protection Law in April 2005, we use the Risk Management
Committee, which was established in April 2002 at Daiwa
House Industry, to avoid the risks inherent in the operations of
the Group, and to enable a prompt and proper response to any
risks that arise. Moreover, we have further strengthened action
against the risk of unauthorized disclosure of personal infor-
mation and we enforce comprehensive security based on our
personal information protection policy.

To contain the risks inherent in our business operations to the
greatest extent possible, we are actively pursuing initiatives
aimed at lowering environmental degradation risks. Specifically,
we are working to ensure that no illegal dumping of waste
materials takes place. We also undertake soil quality surveys of
land plots intended for construction, and of the land on which
our manufacturing plants stand, enabling us to identify soil pol-
lution problems and take immediate remedial action.

The future of the Group depends, first and foremost, on the quality of its work force. We are therefore
investing considerable time and energy in recrganizing our personnel system to make it easier for the opin-
ions of staff on the front line to be conveyed to upper management leveis, and we are also involved in cre-
ating a new style of working environment that gives due consideration to the needs of our female staff, as
well as employees with disabilities. Our aim is to design and perfect a system that will make the most of our

valuable human resources.

Human resources are the key to growth for the Daiwa House
Group and its business operations. Recognizing this, we con-
ducted an attitude survey for all employees in October 2004
and introduced human resources initiatives in fiscal 2005,
which would enable general employzes to develop their capa-
bilities and talent on their own by selecting career paths and
jobs themselves, We will enhance educational programs by
introducing measures such as an inter-company voluntary job-
change systern within the Group, a system to exchange human
resources, the training of executive management ranks through
a next-generation leadership training program, and an in-house
certification scherne.

In recruitment, we are actively hiring new graduates and
mid-career workers based on our policy of respecting the
dignity and diversity of individuals, irrespective of age and
gender. Indeed, Daiwa House Industry has achieved a higher
rate of employment of disabled people (1.89%) than both the
legal employment rate (1.8%) and the average among private
companies (1.48%). We will also encourage the rehiring of
retired employees with special skills and expertise within the
Group, and employ them to hand down and share their tech-
nological expertise and general know-how, to provide better
Customer service.
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Our Environmental Vision

From the current business term, we are extending the frame-
work of envircnmental activities hithertc pursued by Daiwa
House Industry to the whole of the Daiwa House Group.To this
end, we have drawn up the Daiwa House Group Environmental
Vision, which comprises the Group's principles, priority action
themes, and action guidelines relating to environmental preser-
vation. These are aimed at helping realize the Group's manage-
ment vision — the creation of a society in which people can
lead fulfilling lives. Finally, to map out specific measures enabling

Environmental Preservation: i
e Priovity Themes - 0 -

us to take the first steps toward realizing this vision, we have
drawn up the 2005 Action Plan. This plan includes a number of
activities aimed at reducing the environmental load imposed by
our business operations.

Datwa House ranks first in environmentally-friendly houses in Japan

Daiwa House industry achieved the highest position in overall construction (836

blend

m T

CO2 emissions
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PRTR-listed harmful chemicals: Net usage volume

kg*
10
Fiscal 2003 Performance
08 0.832kg
06 : ¥
Fiscal 2004 Performance
04 0.826kg
0.2
0

01 02 03 o2
Note: "Net usage volurne” = total volume used, minus vodume recycled
in addiion to volume rendeied harrnless

Note: The u

70 Annual Report 2005

n with (heir
anmentally-f

units) of environmentaliy-friendly houses in fiscal 2004. We remain actively commit-
ted to environmental protection through our products and business operations.
For that purpose, we have set a target of making 50% of new single-family houses
environmentally-friendly by fiscal 2007,

“Environmentally-friendly houses” are houses constructed with a focus on the foltowing three
concepts to make

petter environment for their residents: protect the global envitonment;
surroundings; and creat2 a healthy and comforishle living environment,
ndly houses are certified by the institute for Building Envircnment and

netqy Conservation.

Energy used
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Corporate Social Responsibility

The Daiwa House Group has consistently been committed to making a social contribution, playing a role in
the development of society and helping to improve the living environment. With the aim of achieving harmo-
ny between the environment and society, our Group has contributed through our business operations, and
has also undertaken a broad array of activities such as offering reconstruction assistance following earthquake
disasters, providing humanitarian aid, handing down traditional culture and providing educational support.

Disaster relief activities

The Daiwa House Group has taken active initiatives in providing
assistance following major sarthquakes, typhoons and other
natural disasters. For example, we have assisted in the reconstruc-
tion of destroyed houses and the building of emergency tern-
porary housing. When the Niigata-Chuetsu Earthquake struck in
October 2004, the Group rerovatad a dormitory building owned
by the Japan Freight Railway Cormpany (five stories, 40 units) in
the severely damaged city of Qjiya, turning it into housing units
for family use. We shared the cosis, anc the completed building
was jointly donated to victims ir: the name of both companies.

Donations to people in disaster-stricken areas

In addition to practical aid, we have also provided indirect as-
sistance by donating funds. For example, in the wake of the
tsunami that devastated the coast of Sumatra at the end of
December 2004, Daiwa House Industry introduced a matching
gift system in which emgployees and the Company donate the
same amount of money. The system was also used when relief
aid was offered 1o victims of the sarthquake that hit Fukuoka in
March 2005.

Technical disclosure for education

Qur Group has established facilities in which visitors can experi-
ence and learn about the latest technolegiss at two locations:
at D-TEC Piaza (a facility that enables visitors to learn about
advanced home technologies) and at the Central Research
Laboratory at Nara. Some 10,000 people visit these facilities each
year. Moreover, Daiwa House Industry has made suggestions
for study topics 10 602 elementary, junior high and senior high
schools nationwide, via "Comprehensive Study Materials.net”on
its website,

Special Olympics

The 2005 Special Olympics World Winter Games for intellectually
disabled athietes was held for the first time in Asia over eight
days starting from February 26, 2005, in Nagano Prefecture. Per-
sonnel at the Shinshu-Matsushire Royal Hotel conducted prepa-
ratory work for over a year, with the cocperation of volunteers,
including chosen bands of people from our Group companies.
These people helped making the event 2 success, with the hotel
accormmodating more than 600 athletes, the largest number
yat, from maore than 30 countries and regions.
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The housing industry faces a wide and complex array of issues, including environmental conservation,
securing homes against natural disasters, and information technology. At the Daiwa House Group, we are
pursuing research and development programs on unique themes with the goal of creating a safe and
comfortable living environment for citizens of the future.

Japan — a country susceptible to natural disasters

Japan is an archipelago situated on the western side of the
Facific Ocean. Japan has four main islands and approximately
7,000 small islands. As for its climate, Japan enjoys distinct
changes of the seasons. Unlike most other countries in the world,
it features three climate zones — cool, warm and subtropical.
Typhoons occur frequently in the southeastern sea of Japan. In
2004, 29 formed, with ten — the highest number since recording
began — actually making landfall, causing major damage. in ad-
dition, Japan is one of the most earthquake-prone countries in
the world, with many active faults lying beneath its surface. All
of which makes it imperative 1o prepare an array of measures
against natural disasters in Japan. For fifty years since our foun-
dation, our R&D has been consistently focused on improving
our technology so that people can live in harmony with nature.
We have developed a broad array of excellent construction
technigues and methods as well as providing products with out-
standing basic performance. in 2004, we invested ¥5,712 million
in research and development. The department employs 254 staff
members in total.

G

~

Applied research for a better lifestyle

Many issues surround housing in Japan.They include an aging
society, people returning to city centers and cohabitation with
the environment. Daiwa House Group, in cooperation with oth-
er industries government and academia, continues to research
movement lines and space designs geared towards the elderly
and convenience in nursing in terms of both structures and
services, under the auspices of the Central Research Laboratory
and Silver Age Research Center. Addressing growing needs for
residences in central urban areas, we develop structures and
performances as solutions to conditions such as limited land
and lighting, noise and vibration.

Giving due consideration to renewable resource-based con-
struction and recycling of construction by-products, we will
promote 1T and communication networks, next-generation
housing facilities using energy cells and cogeneration systems,
as well as our Energy Service Company {(ESCO) Business.
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Basic technologies to support product quality improvement

The Daiwa House Group has developed pro-
prietary earthquake-absorbing housing that
prevents seismic forces from being conveyed
to the building, in addition 10 earthquake
damage-resistant structures in which the entire
structure accommodates and withstands seismic forces. Qur
life-size model tests have verified that by combining our unigue
earthquake-ahsorbing technologies, seismic forces equivalent
to those recorded during the Great Hanshin Earthquake (M7.3)
can be reduced to 1/8 ta 1/11 their original levels ™ In addition,
improvements in earthguake-absorbing capabilities can direct-
ly assist in reducing the secondary damage caused by toppled
furniture and property destruction.

Disaster

prevention

* Values based on quake simulation tests by Daiwa House Industiy

We encourage the construction of houses
that comply with next-generation energy
conservation standards, enabling the costs for
heating and air conditioning to be halved in
comparison with houses meeting conventional
standards.* We also promaote the adoption of solar power gen-
eration systemns in the houses that we build and sell.in addition,
we also engage in a wide range of research related 1o natural
energy and efficient energy use, including the deveicpment
of wind power generation systems and experimental studies
gearead to the adoption of fuel batteries.

Energy

conservation

*The new energy conservation standards

The incidence of household burglaries has
increased 50% over the past five years. In
response, we have developed a number of
burglar-proof methods, including multi-layered
glass with 24 times the strength of ordinary
single-pane windows,* doors with features that protect against
lock picking and the adoption of multiple burglary-prevention
features. In addition, our Group is one of the first among the
major housing manufacturers that has adopted, in January
2005, the official burglary prevention standards for building
components with strong performance in preventing break-ins.

Security

against
burglary

* The spexial glass panes have been used in all windows on the first loor

In addition to playing a leading role in the
industry in preventing "sick house” syndrome,
we have adopted products that comply with
the world’s highest RAL* standards of Germany
and established in-house standards that are
more stringent than the amended Building Standards Law. As
such, we use only selected interior finishing materials, including
hase materials, which emit only extremely negligible quantities
of harmful substances. We have also developed and adopted
unigue ventitation and purification systems, to enhance the air
quality inside houses.

Health

* RAL: The Gerrat Institute for Product Quality Labeling

Number of personnel R&D expenditure Cumulative number of patent
in the R&D division applications by Daiwa House
{publicly announced, non-consalidated basis;
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Daiwa House Industry Co., Ltd.

3-3-5 Umneda, Kita-ku, Osaka 530-8241
Phone: +B1-6-6346-2111
URL: wwwdaiwahiousacojp

Daiwa Logistics Co., Ltd.
Transportation of goods; warehousing;
lngistics services

1-5-16 Awaza, Nishi-ku, Osaka 550-0011
Phone: +81-6-4968-6355
URL wwwedaiwabutsuryu.cojp

Nihon Jyutaku Ryutu Co., Ltd.

Real estate agency (including property
management, asset appraisal. housing
renovation, €tc)

1-1 3-800 Umeda, Kita-ku, Osaka 530-0001
Phone: +81-6-6344-635¢
URL wwwijyutaku.cojp

Daiwa Information Services.Co., Ltd.
Land development: management of

cornmercial faciitics

7-14-4 Ueno, Taito-ku, Tokyo 110-0005
Phone:-+81-3-5828 8891

URLiwwwe dis netin

Principal Group Companies

Daiwa Kosho Lease Co., Ltd.
Leasing of buildings and vehicles;
Dusiness leasing

2-1-36 Noninbashi, Chuo-ku, Osaks 540-0011
Phone: +81-6-6942-8011
URL: www.daiwakosho.cojp
Daiwa Living Co,, Ltd.
Management of rental housing
3-13-1 lidabashi, Chiyoda-ku, Tokyo 102-C072
Phone: +81-3-5214-2330
URL: www.daiwaliving.cojp
Royal Home Center Co., Ltd.
Sale of do-it-yourself, gardening,
and interior goods
3-3-5 Umeda, Kita-ku, Osaka 530-0001
Phone: +81-6-6342-1676
URL:www.royal-he.cojp
LOC Development Co,, Ltd.
Development and management of
shopping centers

67 Kanda-Sakumagashi, Chiyoda-ku, Tokyo
101-0026

Phone: +81-3-3864-0609
URL: wwww.loc-kaihatsu.cojp

Housing Sales Companies

Daiwa House Kansai Corporation 6 other companies

Daiwa House Renew Co., Ltd.
House renovation
Jukeikai Co,, Ltd.
Operation of homes for the aged
Synchroiler Co., Ltd.
Manufacture of housing raterials
Nara Ace Co., Ltd.
Management of goli courses

Shanghai Happy House Decoration Co,, Ltd.
Design and installation of housing interiors

DH (Dalian) Administrative Management Consulting Center Co., Ltd.

Clerical work outsourcing provider

Shanghai International Realty Co., Ltd.
ranagement of rental housing

Dalian Fujiazhuang international Villa Co.. Ltd.
Management of renial housing

Others

Shinwa Agency Co, Ltd.
Advertising and travel agency

NIC Co., Ltd.
Manufacture of interior doors

Daiwa Estate Co,, Ltd.
Real estate agents

The Mortgage Corporation of Japan, Ltd.
Finance of housing loan

Overseas Affiliated Companies

Daiwa Rakuda Industry Co., Ltd.
Sate of household equipment and fumniture;
insurance agency

1-5-16 Awaza, Nishi-ku, Osaka 550-0011
Phone: +81-6-6536-6111

URL: www.daiwarakuda.cojp

Daiwa Service Co., Ltd.
Management of office & condominium
buildings; staff dispatch; house-moving service

1-5-16 Awaza, Nishi-ku, Osaka 550-0011
Phone: +81-6-6536-6270
URL: www.daiwaservice.cojp

Daiwa Royal Co., Ltd.

Rental of commerciat facilities; hotel operations
7-14-4 Ueno, Taito-ku, Tokyo 110-0005
Phone: +81-3-3844-8357
URL:www.daiwaroyal.com
Daiwa Resort Co,, Ltd.
Management of hotels and golf courses

3-3-5 Umeda, Kita-ku, Osaka 530-0001
Phone: +81-6-6342-1731

URL:wwwv.daiwaresort.cojp

Daiwa Energy Co., Ltd.
Energy conservation support

Media-Tech Co, Ltd.
Information systems

Osaka Marubiru Co,, Ltd.
Managerment of hotels and restaurants

Nippon Athletic Service Co,, Ltd.
management of sports clubs

Dalian Acacia Town Villa Co,, Ltd.

Management of rental housing

Dalian Civil Aviation Hotel Co,, L.td.

Management of Royal Hotel at Dalian

Tianjin Jiuhe International Villa Co,, Ltd.
Management of rental housing

Beijing East Palace Apartment Co., Ltd.
Management of rental housing
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A Story of Daiwa House Group

1955

1955
Daiwa House Industry Co, Ltd.
established

First house rmaodel, the “Pipe House,”
launched on rmarket

1957

Steel pipe structure used for
warehouse at sake brawery
receives certification from Japan
Lightweight lron Construction
Association as first such structure
in Japan

76 Annual Report 2005

0

1965

1959

Daiwa Kosho (current Daiwa
Kosho Lease Co, Lid) and
Daiwa Konpo (current Daiwa
Logistics Co., Ltd) established

"Midget House" pilot
orefabricated house model
{aunched on market

1961
Daiwa Danchi establishad

(merged with Daiwa House
in Aprit 2001)

Stock listed on Osaka, Tokyo and
Nagoya stock exchanges

/
/

1965

Nara Factory constructed, Japan's
first specialist plant for production
of prefabricated houses

1968
Network of housing showrooms
set up across Japan

1969

Fullscale start of new town
development business
{Midorigacka Neopolis)

1971

Daiwa Jutakukiki {current
Daiwa Rakuda industry Co, Ltd)
established

1974

Seven of the Company’s

plants — the Nara, Mie, Ryugasaki,
Sapporg, Shikokuy, Fukuoka and
Kagoshima plants — receive
product quality management
awards from MIT!

o
LRy
ey

f’;f%‘

1975

1977
Condominium Business starts

1978

Resort hotels business started
with opening of Noto Royal
Hotel, the first Daiwa Royal Hotel

1979

Real Estate Information
centers set up within each of
the Company's offices as first
step in developing the used
housing markat

Tentakubin (current Daiwa
Service Co, Ltd) established




/

1985

1980

First Royal Home Center
opened in Nara City

1983

Full-scale start of
construction business in
China at Shanghai, Dalian,
and elsewhere

/

o

1986

Daiwa Information Services
Co, Ltd. established

1989
Daiwa Living Co., Ltd.
established

Silver Age Research Center
established

1994

Daiwa House Central
Research Laboratory
opened in Kansai Science
City

1995

The Daiwa House Group
provided disaster relief
1 areas hit by the Great
Hanshin Earthquake,
constructing temporary
housing in January

1

e

=

995

2001

Daiwa House industry Co,
Ltd.merged with Daiwa
Danchi Co, Ltd.

2003

All 13 of the Company's
plants reach “zero emission”
targets

2004
Home center business
spun-off

The Daiwa House Group
draws up its Corporate
Ethics Guidelines and
Behavioral Guidelines

2005
50th anniversary

Sales of “Intelligence Toilet”
commencad

Daiwa House Group draws
up a new management
vision and an Employee
Charter to mark 50th
anniversary

New Group logo — the
“Endless Heart"— introduced
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Never Stop Growing

The late Nobuo Ishibashi, founder of the Daiwa House Group,
developed prefabricated housing in Japan in the immediate postwar period.
By carving out a new growth area within the housing industry,
he contributed to the nation's social and economic development.

As the inheritors of Mr.ishibashi's pioneer spirit,

we will continue to constantly press forward toward new growth.
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Ceonsclidated Seven-year Summary

Dabvea Hoe i

3t ended Mo

Mittions of yen

Net sales ¥1,365914 ¥ 385006
1,082,133 936,801 945474 738310 81319

215,932 201530 202,411 206420 177777 167266 164,473

67,849

Income (ic 2 NCoMme taxes

and mirsrivy inte

63,108 67,897 {

Net income { 40,262 37,257

73.26 6815 {167.00; G55

Dituted net:

959.08 0232 82455 1IREG3 115112
441,388 349,644 426,530 376486 365,502

Total assets 1,358,807

1004441 1187027

524,110

4836

[o))

84 582,438

s {01 7.92

Returnon e

714
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Management’s Discussion and Analysis

Year Frcledd March 21 2005

Business Environment and Financial Strategy

During the rerm under 1«

covered steadily, with improving

INCrease in privat Nvestm
in the second half of the fiscal yaar, howev

down in expoits and a downturn in

er, due 10 a slow-
production of informa-

tion technology products.

while growth in horme ownership

remained stuggish, the nationwide economic rebound was

Turning to our indus

reflected i strong activity in rental properties and subdi-

visions, driving housing construction 15.0n the area of

general construction, piivate capital ir nient ingreased,
but public investment remained restrained, and conditions

continued 1o permit no optimism.

i this

structure tailored ¢ ﬂ w community, and has built g fine-

grained service systermn o meet individual customers’

needs. in order w gquickly respond 1o and reflect customery

requests in our products an d services and to respond to

the expectations of all stakeholders, we have enhanced our

organization by establishing a new Customer Satisfaction

Promotion Depao'mwem, as well as a CSR Promotdion

Office as a dedicared unit 1o oversee maters relating 1o our

social responsibility, in crder to delive: ally-
iforced

Quality

friendly, safe and trou

our quality assure
Assurance Promotion Departiment.

S {On a Consolidated Basis)

e

AL the same timey
by making Daiwa Kosh

method accounting af ﬁl' € into 3

e worked to enhance Gioup operatinns

ease (o, Lid, formeriy an eglaty-

consclidated subsichary,

and hy taking a stake in Osaka Marubiru Co.

A haif-century has passed since our company was 2stab-

fished In 1955 Locking forward 1o the next half-century,
have set out the management vision of ‘Connecting Hearts'
and established "Endless Heart” as a new symbol for the
Group. Our intent is that this will enhance the brand image
of the Group and contribute to assuring its Jnfm@n iaion

and competitive superiority.

The Group has formulated a medivm-iarm mana

plan, cailed "Chalienge 2005,” starting in FY2035, to add
this business environment and th

and to enable us to make the next feap
push ahgad 1o enhance Group operations in (he

gement

ese businesss challeng

for ward ;

strengthen the intragreup synargies

leveraging
strengths of customer base and experience In constructoy

Consolidated sales are an indication of ez

solidated recurring profit is an indication of the value added

of our products and services, and return ¢

s, thee

is an indication of the contribution to sharehol
penchmarks 10 measure growth and development as man-

agement moves forward,

The goals the plan sets out for the three indicators
solidated sales of ¥1,700 billion, consolidated ;ecuningg; profit

130 billion, and ROE of 9.0% or more in fis

Net sales Operating income Net income {loss)
¥ billion ¥hillion ¥hllion
1500 - 89 45
—t 50 T 30 r__

|
S50 . T 40 - : 15
e o U | 0
) ; o ) -100

01 02 03 04 05 0N 63 04 05 01 02 03 04 05

Daiwa House Group

81



the final year of t

serformance

medium-term

period under review

;’\",;magem(‘fr‘,z {.

;o EXC

the Couws

e of developing the business in the
assary to considar the balan

of 1U"’J

xill be ne

GIOCUTement care fu,l;.«:

' v Results of Operations
Of these three indicatars, consolidated sales and con-
Net Sales

nsolidated sales for the
4 billion (USS12,7
ach with the previous ten

4

solidated recuming | rc,ﬁt will be used 1o judge the level of
ess and the fr sitil
1o f

of rnanagement, 1aking into consideration the balance he-

period ended March 2005 were

655 million), an i

PIogre ty of achieving the plan. For this

reason, it s necessary

S increase
us on improving the efficiency !

m. Prirnarily responsible this

compare

increass in revenue was the acquisition of Daiwa Kesho

o strengthen

=

the foundation of the business and the returm of profits

Tween ca!:rﬂ:a’ investrnent which is nacessary 1o

ease Co., Ltd,
fhliate. Anothe
apartrments and subdivisions grew strongly, exhibiting

previously an equity-method accounting

r factor was that of new hausing starts,
sharehotders. Our basic approach for the tirne being is to acto tha ew housing

strive t om

© atain ROE targets as the citeria to measure prog-

on-vear growth for the second straigt ar to 1,193
ss towards capital efficiency. _ yeary ' seco gt year ic
hon units, thanks to the upward momentum of the

inder reviewy s a combination

incorne 1o sales ratio of 2.9%, the 1ot

The 7 9%
of the net
Yer ratio O!

3¢ ne e coc el - -5
ROE for the period econemy, even though single-family houses siurnped due

0 the reduction in mortgage loan tax breaks.

112 times and Anancial lever:

zgment, prior 1o consolidation adjustments for

intrasegment transactions, all enjoved increased sales,

haousing at ¥854.5 billion (LUSS$7,986.6 million), a

a compared with the previous term, comimerzial
billion {LUS$3.400.

increase, resort hotels at ¥55.7 billion (US$521.0 milion),

ing financiat leverage, one of the R

SUcCeed CF far the p,.‘r ocd under

was what led in raqcmg RO

review, if only shigh

come to sales ratio in

the reporting term and the TC'd| 3ssels turnover 1atio wers

Ny

onstruction at ¥383.8 2 mitlion}, a 31.4%

at a level basically equivalent 1o the prior term. However, ex-

ternai capital such as borrowings and bonds, etc. brings w

¥58.1 billion

increase, the home center busines

it fixed costs in the form of interest payments, and there

292 nillion), 3 34% increase, and other businesses at

is a possibi!ity of impairing asset soundness, We continue

. ] Eitlion {USS973.1 million}, a £.5% increase. One factor
10 have ample intemally-generated cash flow 1o cover the U559 ’ ’ :
. in the increased sales was the acquisition of Daiwa Kosho
necessary level of investiment funds however, we belisve in e s e “
Operating profit margin Basic net income (foss) per share
S ¥
g 75
7 50 ;
: 25
o o )
\ -200
01 02 03 04 05 or o2 03 04 05
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cments, Df’ua Kosho Lease {o, L (f :

ridcular due o it

Cost of Sales and, Selling and General Administrative
Expenses

The cost of sales increased s
(Us

previous term. The cost of s al
by

Biftion

significantly to ¥1,082 1
e of ¥1188

510,713.3 million), an increase billion over the

ratio thus rose 0 79.2%, ex-

S 2rnal and

ceeding the previous term points, Both inte

externai factors were at play. T factor is the add-

0.
e internal
fro irion of Dabwa

tion of cost of sales resulting from the acquisit

Koshio Lease Co., Ltd BExternal factors included skyrocketing

rnaterials prices, mainly the rapid rise in prices for steel for

o, restlting in an increase in the cost of s:

compieted work, as wall as a decline in salin

ﬁ)\' fierce cor {x’O(f[ir":Qﬂ.

Sales and general administrative expensas were ¥215.2 hillion

an?,u!d O millic SRl

the previcus term, Although labor and advertising exper

1, an increase of ¥14.4 billion compa

r»grd the SG&A expense ratio of 15.8% showed a de-

<
crease of 0.6 points compared 10 the previous term.

Operating Income

Operating income was ¥67 .8 billion (LISS634.1 million), an

Fixed ratio

Management's Discussion and Analysis

e of 137
nCrease inrevenue and a reduction in Cos

288, 1)I0ﬁm increased across the bo:

compared to the previous term, dug ¢ an

s Excluding the

the resort hotals segment on g

/

rise i revenue, Jperating

5 an increase of 0.1 points over to the pre-

Business Overview by Segment

The analysis of segment-by-segment sales in the foliowing

includes mtrasegmem transactions.

Housing Business

in the single-family housing division, we introduced major

ucts such as s ) -ciesignec‘ fwa-stary and ¢

ught to market

C luxury, utitizing

eyterms

i material providing eve

rerist v.\We offered hi

cnars

products 1o expand sales in urban areas, such as an
iype wooden three-story product with stylish exte-
VNAmIC space, as well as wooden two-story houses
paby boomers” who are

“second-generation

-tirme buyers 1o express their personality.

in the home renovation business, we respondad to the
/dith changes in

we have faken

ging, diversifyiniq needs asscciated w

ructure

acture and dife style Maximum

of expertis2 that enly

& housing producer would

Tangible fixed asset turnover ratio

% Tives
106 4.0
P
7 i 30 il Ty
P /%w/ e
o

s 20
35 i0
4]

Gi 92 03 04 05

o1 02 03 04 05

Daiwa House Group

83



Lservice renovation brand R

possess with

targe nge of buildings such as condominiums
and retail stures a5 well as housing.

Unit sales for single-family housing thus rose to 12,470,an ir-

creass of 2.7% :':mpared

of ¥3432

> the previous term, vielding sales

13,2074

.

billion 4 million) on a non-consolidated

basis, an increase of

|

5.2% compared to the previous term.

n the rental apartment buildings division, we came out

pe three-story apartment building with
i stvlish exterior design and a variety of

ith the versatility o deal with a wide
s and be b

range o it efficiently in cverpopulate

5 in urban areas. As continu-

S? 14(\ 1 m|Hio

¢
{Ona

of 23% ,asland ©

')f'-:)posais and new product

es channels using the

Tinium asset value support svstem we

introduce 5, however, dropped 10 3,727, a decrease

of 2.9% compa

e Drevt Hous term. in ven (erms, never-

ales of fand) reached ¥83.5 hiltion

Current ratio

Shareholders’ equity to total assets

& compared 1
4G 7 billion {J

Commercial Construction Business

ons for the commercial construct

Business conditi ion seg-

ment continued 10 provide no grounds for optirmism, with
pulblic investment marked by restraint. Against such a back-
ground, we leverzged our strengths in information about
land and exper porting the store opening activities

of tenant con D < 1 move forward

ith the building of
roads near suburban

commerdial spaces along the main

resiclential areas and development o

me sedd of mu i[y

 Lease Co, Lid, dou-

O M an incroase

of 108.2% comparad to the
34930 tenant companies. With an eye 1©

2Ly of the future, we also released a

SOL

= Conter g;»rod uce, the fraits of the exper-

sing care accumulated over the years

-n Canter since its inception in 1984

y and sophisticated service

nindustey, we 'mdeﬂe-d the scope of our

business ihroua_,!, .rshiﬂ;.-s under our partner

coordination system. proy distribution solutions.

As a

rcial construction segment
33,4002 mil

lieny, an increase of

Shareholders’ equity per share

o % ‘
o — 1200 ; - _
i
15 s 500 : 1
Ny T
Y i
s 3 600 i 3
50 . g 300 R ISR U S I A
. o ,
ol 02 03 04 05 01 02 03 04 05 ot 02 03 04 05
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ffering cui‘«‘mes

- nmet using local crganic ingredi-

enls un

ty and Health” As a result,

the annual nurmbes srs at hotels passed the 3 million

mark, with the ¢ pancy rate increasing to around 49%,

e resert hotals segment 1os

3y increase of 4.0%
3, with operating incorme of ¥1 ts

\ g

rease of 2,262.1%, and operating

Home Center Business

and the scope cf the home center s
e new stores and ma%nr: R\)V“ﬂ

MENT DY OPaning
esult, total fioor
ted 190.G

However, average

(00 M7 and

tinued 1o decrease, reflecting

al consumption even though the

orners has incre

rumber of purc! d.In response,

the Gr Nedvors expand sales taking advantage

Return on equity

Management's Discussion and Analysis

nterior materials and home renovation

rid and expertise we have built up

1 conter segment recorded sales of ¥56,
o {USS552.

the previcus

increase of 3.4%

compared 0

arating incoma of ¥100 midlion (USS0.9

mi ;U’t} a decrea

i aperating marging of §.20%.

er_am

in the other busin

oaching housing manufacturers and

DUSINEss unit Dy a

building matern ading companies 1o promaote existing
g and exterior building materi-

and by introducing new

o puild eight

ik _/

apan 1o improve ogist

y begun operatiens,

erations by making Qszka

idated subsidiary,

U"

usinesses segment reached

Yilliony, an increase of 6.5% com-
7, with operating inceme of ¥3.5

.an increase of 25.2%, and operating

Free cash flows*

% ¥tllion

20 60

10 45

1] 30
10 LT ety et et

Free cash flows™:

. i Cash flow fram nperating activities

=29 - 9 a +Cash flow from investing activities

01 Q92 03 04 05
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Other income and Expenses

Other income

‘

CO{’?’:.’DB(E‘CJ o hile other expenses were

sn The net result of sub-
ne is a loss of ¥4.7

tractmg other @
hillion J5544.
parad 10 the previous term.

2 million) & decrease of ¥13.0 billion com-

The main reason for the deciense in other income was the

ame | wiet'

decrease in d o retirement and pension ac-

counts. The ¥G.1 hillion in income from amortization of vari-
" ance inretirement and pension accounts booked as income

the previous gsii 2 billion in this tenm,
53 blli!c:»m o
amortization of variance of rentement and pension trust
d. The factor underly-

duction in the differance between

while the ¥ e previous term from

ared ent

funds disal

ing both of thes

actual performance and the expecied investment income,

The mazin reascn for the increase in other expenses was

Vamaortization of

an increase e amoint ¢

i

v costs required for ter-

employees’ prior s2
i on Fund for the

mination of ope

government and  expensas related 1o establishing the cor-

porate brand.

Net income

Net income for the p thus ¥40.2 bilion (USS276.2

million), an incre

86 Annual Report 2005

compared 10 the previous term,

thanks o an ing nore than ! operating in-

come and a lowsred corporate 1a+ bu

counting. Net income as a percer

ac

the same a5 in the prior pwn" Famings per share

hast level for the past five

Liquidity and Capital Resources

Financial Position

31 mithond.

VIQUS Tf~rm—~ﬂd

cauisition of Cal

Currem ass
incraase of 23.4% ¢
drarnatic it

] 11;);’ sale espedially
f ate for

mrominen

condorminiums, and i eqguivaients

not increasing significantly even w ded contriby-

tion from Datwa Kosho Lease Co, Lid tracdle

receivables, indluding zccounts due {or completed work,

the

N N
£358 1IN ¢

in attributable to an inc

ho lease Co.

lznt and e




structures and regl estate. The ¢
Kosho Leas

fso incre

segiment, at ¥3

4 to ¥304 8 billion

over the previous

Investrnents and other assets amou
(US82.846 3

flion), a1y increase of

ch increased signif

terrn. The & deposits

and guarantees. Construction cooperation fund and de
AREY

va Kosho Lease Co, Lid contributad to

cstment in securities dedl

posits he

this incre
3 the stockt
were offser by its shareholders’ equity in conjunction with

ase

hand,

oldings in Dabwa Ke

its acquisition,

Liabilities

Total lia
)5 57 1 G

Drevious rerm.

2 hillion {

npared with th

e CUeENt portion of

contribution of

Management's Discussion and Analysis

pital {current assets less current liakili-

am “ur‘tM to ¥227.2 billion, an increase of 4.8% com-

the liguidity
ratic decreased 16 1F
the Group’s retaing

an increase of ¥81.8 billion over
reason for the significant increase

guarantess was i

R

funds and long rerm depe

ssrre Co, Ld the parent, has

Lrd. Although Datwa House Inc
no interest-bezaring obligations on & non-consolidated Dasis,

fiaries o Dalwea Kosho

iaries increased.

term and loz‘ C-lerm DOfTow|

Group continues 10 be effectis

Minority Interests

approximately

iwa Kosho Les red subsidiary,

approximately 609

es remaining aiter deduction
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of approxiny

IO ;r\’ nter

Shareholders’ Equity
Shareho

bitlion over the prior period end. Net <

fers o termeend stood at

ating activities decreased by ¥13.5 bill

{1Q
.

(USS54,898.2 miliion), an increase of 3% o

24 2 miilion), which is altzibuta

term. Retained earings increased, reflect

profit The a;uity ratio dec wventory.

the increases in total ass

The rmain reason was the signifcant increase in iny

ificant purchasas of real estate held for saIA

N ON equity) reac dug 1o sig

us term, and ROA (e receivabies increased due 1o the rise in sales, which was

y below the levet of set, however, by an increase in tracle pavables.

jvities amountad 1o ¥

o]

million), an increase of ¥27.1 billion over the

Dividend Policy Net cash used i
The Cor : on {US5495.9

vious termy. The main reason for this expenditurs was

Apany’s fundamental stance is to sustain dividen

at an appropriate level, faking into consideration the hal- [y

en sh s with shareholc

an<e betwe

ari the push to acquire property. plant and equinprment mainly

! nqs for
oundation
/ the céiwden

building sites for large-scale rental housing faci

Nat cash provided by financing activities was ¥3.8 bilion

In accore

s net outfiow

joan increase of

has been s

current term, an an anrwal dividend of

nvestments in facilities resulted in a fund inflow, wh
50th anniversary dividend cf ¥3.

i {t offset increased div ments due 1o the

v dincrease.

Resulting free cash flow,

operating activities and investing activities, was ¥2.0

billion from the pricr period.

down by ¥40.6
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Qutlook for the Current Fiscal Year, Ending March 2006

Although & e
cal 2008

econamy in hs-

s, width ¢ Dmh‘nxw’; improvement in Corporate sarm-

due to the sk yrocketim p-:'i:.:es of crude oil and other raw
materia!s arad a possible downturn in external demand

slowdown in the world economy.

sight, and no major stirmulus for giowth in demand 1o be
found.

in this envitonment, the ¢

work 1o strengthen its
ommunivy-orented business ap

inct develop prod-

uCEs and ¢

ices responsive to our customers needs. In
. .

particular we intend 1o push forward with developing the

Group, under the medivm-tenm management plan entitied

ich kicks off i fiscal 2005, and 1o rein-
1 the
ouwr customar hase and the

ed 1o date.

sl L

oup t::ased on duai sprengt

o the raultifaceted ne QJ‘ of our
CUSLOMErs, 12 isfaction levels by establish-

ing a serie

region 1o de;
customers needs in an | red fashion, and by improe-
ns and comments elicited

e

ing opeations b

from customers. ok 10 strateqgically improve th

Management’s Discussion and Analysis

ty ratings of the Group, by
establishing an crganization for that purpose, in an effon

1o obtain a sug : position for the Group’s

businesses. Further endeavor 10 axpand and

strengthen our bu means of reinforcing our ser-
vice organization.

We view corporate soc¢ial respomsibk?izy {CSRY as a top

building an organa‘zation respon
stakeholders enhancing company training reoardinq the
corporate athics guidelines of the Dalwa House Group,

compliance with laws and reguiations, and hurnan rights.

We shail enhance emerprise value by furthering our exist-

ing environmentai preservation initiatives, deliver reliable,

secure products and senvices, and contribute Lo society by

1evexaan,a our unigue techngl > consiruction of

medical and riursing care facilies,

on a consoli-
biiiion, operating in-
on, recuring income of £77 hillion, and nat

For the cument fiscal vear, e
dated basis, we foresee sal

come of ¥75 b

los of ¥

income of ¥41 billion,

Please note that amortization of variance in retrement and pension accounts
is omitted from the forecast since it depends on changes in the operating
conditions of pensian assets in the coming year.
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ed Balance Sheets

o, s Subsidiariae

Assets

Hillions of yen

Thousands of
U.S. dollars {Note 1)

2005

Current assets:
¥ 150468

2
27

WA

8010

62,294

31,058
38,038

Total cwrrent assats

Property, plant and equipment:

Land (NGtas

Accuimit

Machinery and equipment

depraciation

Accurnuiatedt

i fictures

curities (Nore 3)

1 75,405
120057

Lease deg

S
-
231

Hinencal statements,
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Liabilities and shareholders’ equity

Thousands of
Millions of yen U.S. doifars (Note 1)
2005 o0 2005
Current liabilities: o
Short-term bank loans (INote A1 13,175 ¥ 550 S22
1,368 a1 12,7853
23,062 20,020
1278911 162,423 11495430

O CUSTOMErs

ion for product w

Accrued expensss and other ¢

Total current labilities

Long-term liabilities:

Long-termy de

Total leng-term lia

Minority interests

Shareholders’ equity (No

81,227
48005
15,599
15,242

4,874

A
14,218 148,720
142448
15,551

6555 Gl
99,871
57,023
148,821

65,362 45919

377542 285,762

A IO
{80,200)
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Consolidated Statements of Oper

v IIRIEEIN

ation:

Millions of yen

Thousands of

U.5. dollars {Note 1}

Net sales

Cost of sales

Gross profit

Selling, general and administrative expenses {Not

Operating income
Other income {expenses):

Interest income and dividends

Write-down of marketable and investrment securities

W

A

rize-clown of inventories
Loss on sales and disposaiof o

olant and eguipment

-

nefit icost; (Note 7)

Pricr servic

Armnortization of

ansitional obligation
ployess'r f

ment ber:

irement b

Actuarial loss on re

se to & change of
Notes vl f)

nt and equipny

income {loss) before income taxes and minority interests

Income taxes (Note 111
Current

red

Total

Minority interests in net {income) loss of subsidiaries

Net income (loss)

Per share of common stock (Note Z-0)

nefits (Notes Z-rand 7

1,365,914 ¥
082,133
283781
215,637
7,849
1,067
TR
L/ 30)
)
{5)
(2.252)
ERN
(8730
2,2 4,225}
(48,888)
31,733
{75,183}
(77%) (318
(4741} 1200G,429)
53108 67837
S oA LAy
(2.489) (1032
Yo 37257 ¥ 9],388)
Yen

20652
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ORI ; - tn oyl Pere! ;
Consolidated Statements of Sharehclders’ Equity
» 13 i
Thousands B Millions of yen

Balance, April 1,2002

© sud
ax rate and cther {13
s of land

Pow

8425

Ba4E 1

Balance, March 31,2004
SHICOMe

Balance, March 31,2005

Thousands of U.5. doltars {Note 1)
Nt unir

Balance, March 31,2004

€7 Share

s dize T Newly consolidation of

i 0 land

[IGCB VR RIS

Balance, March 31,2005

Daiwa House Group



Consolidated Statements of Cash Fiows

wi

frig Howe i

AN

‘(oars Envdod

Thausands of
Millions of yen U.5. doltars (Hote 1)
7002 2004 005

Operating activities:

240,495
TROES

59,122

(21647}
14
(514}

54%)

T

el dac

INet 3

Financing activities:
e »

[\
[N
Is o L

Net increase {decrease) in cash and cash equivalents
Cash and cash equivalents, beginning of year
Cash and cash equivalents, end of year

{Continued)
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Thousands of
Millions of yen U.S. doltars (Note 1)

2005

Non-cash investing and financing activities:

SN SRR o o

waciated procesds

140084
{43,093

forrer

i for

ABISMECIS

ated subsiciary

ceens hon

Concluded)

Daiwa House Group



Notes to Consolidated Financ

rabaig Howse wksory Coo bt et subadiaris

1.Basis of presenting consolidated financial statements

cial statements have
iriancial statements

CUNROSES 1N ac cordance

Aqth the provisions Nese ‘\{L'CU(iiieS and
Exchange Lawe. Datwa incustry Co, Ltd. tthe "0
and its domestic subsidiaries maintaln their accounts and

Company”)

records in accerdance with the provisions set forth in the
Japanese Commercial C ode™ and in conformity

with accounting principles generally aﬂ‘eptcd in Japan,
which ave different in certain respecis as to application and
disclosure requirements of

zrnational Financial Peporting
Standards, and its fareign subsidiarias in conformity with

In preparing these consolidated financial statements, certain

angements have been made o

reclassif

the Conse i'd.md fin rents issued dormesticaliy

o which s more familiar 1o

i order 10 present thent in a f
readers outside Japan.

Company is INCerporaie
Iapanesevpn amournts o U.S.dollar amounts are %nduded

solely for the conveniends

have been mads at th approximate
Such transiations should
tiens that the Japanese yen

2.5 dollars at that or any

rate o?‘sﬂ‘ [a) ;~ t @
rate of exchang 72
Not He Constust
amounts could he
other rate.

2.Summary of significant accounting policies

a. Consolidation
The consolidared fng

ancial statements include the accounts

f the Comnpany and

based on the controe

o]

diaries {together the "Group™

aence concept. Under the con-

rrob or influence concept, those companies over whose op-
srations the Parent, direcily or indirectly, is able to exercise
control are fully ¢ ' id thoss

v 1o exercise significant influ-

cornpanies over

which the u”\up! as th

96 Annual Report 2005

and operates, she translations of

ial Statements

The differences bepween the cos

of investments in subs

zipr%vinq net equity
jaries and 1ated companies at
acquisition, are amortized over five yeais,

All significant intercompany balances and transactions have

been eliminated in consolidation jal unrealized
profit included in assets resulting from transactions within

the Group is eliminated.

yater

During the year ended March 3 2003, Nihon Jyutaku Ryutu
Co, Lrd, formerly an assed
in consolidation as a resy
its shares.

v, has been included
ditional acquisition of

During the year ended March 31, 2004, Daiwa System Co.,
Lidh and three subsidiaries, have |
solidation as a result of sales of tf

n excluded from con-

3iwa Kosho Lease
e other subsidiary

nies, have been

During the year ended March 31,
Co, Ltd. and its four subsidia
whici\ were formerly associated o«

wcluded in the consclidation as a result of the additional
acquésidora of their shares,

b.Cash and cash equivalents

Cash equivalents are short-team iy
convertible into cash and that are ¢

risk of changes in value

snis that are readily
1 1o insignificant
s include time
vhich mature or
become due within three muﬂ’hK or the date of acquisition.

deposits and certificate of ds

¢ Marketable and investment securities

Marketable and investment s e classified and ac-
counted for, depending on man went’s intent, as follows:
) held-to-maturity debt securit iy are expected to be
held 1o maturity with the positive intert and ability 1o hold
to maturity are reported at amortized cost and i) available-
forsale securities, which are not classihed as held-to-rmaturity.

-sale securities are stated at

age method. For other

Non-marketable availabi

cost, determined by the movi

v declines in fair

than temporary nent securities

harge to income.

are reduced to net realizable value by &

Investrnsnt i an assodiated companny p%edged as collateral
for a loan of the associated company was ¥20 million (3187
thousand} as of Nmrc!'\ 31,

o



d.Short-term investments

due [ ter T_han H'wree

as collaterat o3

ubstlmres z)f deposits for certain construc-

and advertisement contracts were bhoth ¥29 million

thousand; as of March 33

e.Inventories

Inventories are stated at cost, Inventones of land, residential
homes and condominiums, afvi construction projects in
f =lopment and

5 of land, land deve
construction. The cost of construction materials and supplies
is daterrnined by the average method. However, appropriate
s are recorded for

sidered 1o have |

progress includ

W

ntories with vatues con-
permanently or substantially impaired,

I

f.Property, plant and equipment

Property, plant and equipment are stated at cost. Depre-
|

ciation is computed substantially by the dedlining-balance

'Tmhu !n!c the stra h{\d is applied to build-
yiter April 1, 1€ he range of useful lives is

y from 15 (¢

from 10 to 12 vea

o

510 15 years for furniture and fixtures.

Extraordinary depreciat propeity, plant and eoumrrsemt

was charged to income for the vear ended March 31, 200

for depreciable assers in which um;zamm che

lined signm»
resort hotels, club-houses on
3 bl inxh s for rent. The extraor-

S

carly These assets consi

L
==
,.\
;
&

ses and commerc

E

ecorced was ¥73,262 mitlion, ¥856 mil-

s million, for buildings and structures, machine
an wd eguipment, and f

irure and fixtures, respectively

g.Long-lived assets
i August 2002, the Business Accounting Coundl zssatd a

Statement c-f O

!,H non, ACCOU

the Accounting Standards Board

Jidl"fé NG, 6, il

h _\'\'_ai years begin-
adoption permitted

d the neve accouniing standard for im-
wded March 31,

from the ve

-lived assets for impairment

2004 The Group revi
WhENSVr BYents ©

Carryng amaount

coverable, An impalanent foss

iid be recognized if the
group exceeds the sum
ounted future Cash flows expected to result
from the continued use and eventual disposition of the as-
sset group. The impairment toss would be measured
as the amount by which the (‘%Uy%ng amount of the asset
i nt which is the higher of the
discounted cash flows from x.he continued use and eventual
disposition of the asset or the net seiling price at disposition.

carrying amoaunt of an 3356t or ass
of th

= ndis

set Or as

exceeds IS recove

ccounting standard for
ot of ﬁ,\u assets were 1o decrease income hefore

ncome taxes and mino

The effects of adoption of the new

mpatrn

ty interasts for the years ended

¥1,204 million (611,252 thou-
Thy pl ,

i

ating leases. Under Japa-
laases, Ainance leases that are

iz of the leased property to the
while other inance leases are

nese accounting standard §
deemed 1o transt

permitted 10 be acc
tions if certain

the notes to the le:

for as operating lease transac-
zad” information s disclosed in
ak starements.

i. Retirement and pension plans
The Company and its doms

aries have unfunded re-
a conmibutory funded pension plan.

tirement benedt plans and

v and its dormestic con-
accounting standard
s and account for the lia-
sased on the projected benefit
s at the balance sheet date

Effective Apnl 1, 2000, the
solidated subsidiaries (Tsd()pafr‘d an
for f’l‘\D]”“":\S retirement benefl
bility for retirerment beneft:
obligations and plan asse

; )

The transitional obligation of ¥-43,221 million, determined
L2000, was reduced by an immediate charge to

» gMmount

of the fair value of the contribution
s 151 2000.The remaining

r-sale
transitional obligation

28489 million is prindipally being
amortized over three years,
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Due 10 the deterioration of the stag and the revi-
sion of the discount 1
of unrecognized .a<:ruas’%5u‘ losse
the projected tion during "‘L: With the
government’s approva e Group's application for the
exemption from future obligations related to the substitu-
tional portion of the pension program (Note 7),
of the retirement benefit ,clam and the reevamination of
investment policy, the ac

evenly over principally 10 years undar the ¢

b amaount

to 40% of

Curnutat

,”fb

L the revision

SUp's previous
method, was changed to be recognized when incurred in

order o disclose information about retirement and pension
plans more timely. As a result, tf

oss before income taxes

and minority interests for the vear ended March 31,2003

increased by ¥81,621 i Hiuw compared with what would
have heen femrdm under the previous method.

j.Revenue and proﬁt recognition

CONUaces are ¢ nwo!exe dang =i the
down payment and ot} ;
contracts. Land and land develop

to units solkd based upon relative ares.

dated by the

are allocated

k.income taxes

The provision for income taxes is con
pretax income included in the consolidatad
operations. The asset and liabili n a0 pr sach is used to rec-

ments of

future tax consegquences «:sf temporary
the camrying amounts and the tax l
abilities. Deferred taxes are

AN arzd lif»
1 currently

I. Appropriations of retained earnings
Appropriations of retained amings at each ves
flected in the finandial staterments of the f(»lm
shareholders approval has heen obtained,

m. Foreign currency transactions
All short-term and long-term monetary rece

fos and pay-
ables denominated in foreign currencies are transiated into

Japanese ven ar the current a«change rates at the balance

sheet date, The foreign . and losses from

translation are recognized | operations.

98 Annual Report 2005

n.Foreign currency financial statements
£ s

The balance sheet accounts of the consolidated foreign
subsidiaries and associated companies are uanslated into

lapanese yen at the current exchange rate as of the balance
shieet date except for shareholders equity, v
fated at historical exchange rates. Revenue and expense
accounts of the consohdated foreign subsidiaries and as-
sociated companies are translated into yen at the current

exchange rate.

vich is trans-

Differences arising from such Transtation are shiown as "For-
eign currency transiation adjustir as a separate com-
ponent of shareholders equity.

o.Per share information

Basic net incorme per share is computed by dividing net in-

come available 1o common shareholders, by the weighted-
average nurnber of cormmmaon sharas outstanding for the

[eaT.

e

1 shares out-
\‘./4 Aty d Ll)(}J

et

and and 547045

The weighted-average number of commaos
standing ffw the vears ended Maich 31, 201
1S

e 546,329 thousand, 546,625 thou
thousand, respectively.,

Diluted net income per share of common stoch
2005 and 2004 are nort disclose §
it is anti-dilutive. Diluted net income par share of cornmaon
stock for the year ended March 31,2003 is not disclosed be-
cause the Company incurred a net loss

ended March 31

Cash dividends per share presented in the accompanying
consalidated statements of operations are dividends appli-
‘a!:»fe to the respective years including dividends to be paid
afrer the end of the year

p.Treasury stock

Effective April 1, 2002, the
counting standard for tre
Under the new smndarcﬁ,the SOC
held by its subsidiaries and assoc
as treasury stock according to the percentage

g.Reclassifications

Certain reclassifications have been made i the 2004 and
2003 financial statements to conform to the classi
used in 2005.

noations




Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements

3. Marketable and investment securities

rities as of March 31, Y4 consisted of the following:

Marketable and investmeant se¢
Thousands of
Millions of yen U.5. dollars

2005
Current;
Government and corporate honds ¥ oos ¥ [68) ] 234
Non
Fauity securities 445,767 $529,333

e ant and corporate bong 2
Investments in fimited liability na g G573

Total

5 at March

The carrying amounts and

31,2005 and 2004 were a3

Millions of yen
S
2GGS
Fair
value

Securities classified as

Available-f
¥25.654 ¥352
34 34
Mitlions of yen
2004
Unrealized  Unrealized Fair
gains fosses value

Securities classi

¥40.033
ve a4

Thousands of U.S. dolfars

206

vl

Unrealized  Unrealiced

Gains fosses

$3,290
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Available-f
200

Thousands of
Millions of yen 1.5, dollars
2005 2004 2005

Available-for-sale:

mited liability partnership

The carrying values of debt securities by

field-to-maturity at Marc

mield 1o maturity

classified as

Millions of yen

Thousands of
U.S. dollars

Duz in one vear or less

Due in five &

Tote
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Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements

4. Inventories

irventorie

Thousands of
U.S. dollars
Firi resicenti vies and condominiums ¥ § 257206
Construction projacis in progress 329421

iial hores and condominiums in process 7556318

17

rruction materials and others

in two principal business activities. They manufacture and constiuct pre-
crad TrUCtion projects,

ntial buitdings. To f}'m&ﬂ such

r"abmzared houses and structwres and also engage in various ¢

primarily for the construction of iarqe-scai@ comrercial and 1
business, the Group puichases tand for developrent and resate.

5.Land revaluation

rthe

aev of Land Revaluation,” the Company and
on of their own-use land 1o a value

siciaries elected a one-time

ased on rea aisal information as of March

iand revaluation difference represents unrealize ion of land and is stated,

net of income taxes, as a component of shareholders equity, T!m_;; was o effect on the statement

“ontinuous readjustment is not permitted uniass the land value subsequently

declines significantly such that the amount of the decline in value should De removed from the

iand revatuation difference account and related deferred tax liab

As of Marc t 21, 2005, the carrving amount of the fand after ove one-time revaluation

A o

market value by ¥2,763 million ($25,827 thousand}

change in the land revaluation di staterments of

shareholders equity.
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6.Short-term bank [cans and fong-term debt

'ch 31, 2005 and 2004 consisted of bank loans. The ann

K loans ranged from 04% o 16

uat interest

rates far A4 wers 14% at March 31, 2005

and 2004, resne

Long-term dhebt at March 31, 2005 and 2004 consisted of the fol

N

Thousands of
Mitlions of yen U.5. dollars

Long-term de

et of current po

~ e

ngetern debt at March 31,2

Thousands of
U.S. dollars

[
i
312,782

~
%

At March 21, 2005, assets pledged as collateral for secured long

Thousands of
U.5. doliars

Receivalidas '

fnven

Buildings
Land

ks and certa

n or obligation that be

1wt alt other debt payat

t be provided if requested by the lend

sosited with them against any bank

dus and, in« ot default and certain other specified

he Group has never recei

o

bani concer
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Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements

7.Retirement and pension plans

emplovees retiremnent benefit plg

7 the unfur

slan, employees of the Jompany and

7 are entitied, in most Crcumstances, 1o lump-
ence 1o wage rates at the time of termination and
together with centaln subsidiaries and associsted compani

beneht pension plan covering most of their employ

Nes

oyees retirernent benefits at March 31, 2005 and 2004 consisted of the following:
Thousands of
Millions of yen U.s. doffars

2005 2004

=1 periodic benefit costs are as follows:

Thousands of
Mitlions of yen U.5. dollars

2605 2004
¥11,6847 ¥

4,955

plan assets 5 4)

ss {gain)

nal obligation

the 5d0ru;om>r Uw f:sed retirement benafit plan concerning the um

SUIM SEVErance payments.

;

he year ended March

represents the net effect of {
in the benefit ehiigation of ¥2,732 mitlion i\ 5,533 zhousamd} from the adoption of 1
ined benefit pension plan and (2) a decrease in the benefit obli

wousand) from :he adoption of the r
payments of a subsidiary.

= benefit plan concem
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ernrnental
hehalf of the ¢« nment and c<:xr;::o;‘ate COTHon estab-
lished at the rixsmﬂt on of the company, According to the
snactment of the s?e:med B'Jnf?m Parion Plan Law in April
002, the Cor
tion to pay ber emp ’
substitutional poruon wh{ch wouldd 1
the pension obligations and related assets to the govern-
ment by anothier subseguent application. -
tained an 3
the Ministey o,‘ H
2002 Asar

NeComp (3”\ on

1]

transter of

axermption from futy

Commer-

wires of common stock are

> and at least f‘:b‘f’n of the issus
on
onal paid-

ir capital suplus, the Code

imng net prog
in capita
permits lapan
of Dirsctors, 1o
consideration

s, upon approval of the Beard

shareholders without

of shares gene
ally does not give 1ise to changes within the shareholders
accounts.

Th(z

Ades that an arnount at least equal 1o
Aount of ¢

J!fti
sclated with
cash outlays i period shali br aoprr
ated as a i nl reserve \a :c'nponrw of ¢

unt
of commaon st ‘ﬂfz ar sict-in

Capital and I”'u! reserve that ex

31 ku*a

COTHNeh

wallabie for di
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subsidiaries recognized a gain on eamption from pension

obligation of the govern
5,575 million in acc
ment of the accounting standard
benefits for the year ended M
tional portion of the plan asse

al prograny in

S v~.v'i‘;'xcn '~.-~.-"xil be ﬁamferred
1o the government in the subsequent year is measured
to be approximately ¥38040 mitlion as of March 31, 2003
The Company applied for transfer of the substitutionat por-

tion of past pension obligations to the government and

P

obtained approval by the Ministry of Health, Labow and
Welfare on June 1, 2004 The actual transfer of the pension
obligations and related assets to the government is (o take

place subsequently after the government's approval,

The Code allows Japa
sury stock and dispose of such treasury stock by resolution
of the Board of Dm‘ oS The e amount of trea-
sury stock cannot excead the armount avaliable for future
dividend plus amount of common stock, additional paid-
2d i the ¢
s resoived at the shareh

NOGE

e companies o repurchase trea-

in capital or legal reserve 1o ba rede

such reduction wa

ers ¢

In addition to the provision that requires an appropriation
for a legal reserve in connection with the cash pavmeant,
the Code impo rain firnitations on the amount of
retained earnings available for dividends. The amount of re-

tained earnings available {or dividends under ¢

o

Codde was

g&nera! books of account,

Dividends are approved by the shareholders at a meeting
hald subsequent 10 the fiscal vear 1o which the dividends
are applicable. Semiannua
paid upon resolution of the Board of Directars, subject to

cartain limitations imposed by the Code.

nterim dividends may also be



Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements

9.Segment information

information about oparations in ditfer

as follows:

grments of the Group for the years ended March 21, 2005, 2004 and 2002 15

Sales and operating income (loss)

Mitlions of yen

Rations/

Corporate Convolidated

Resort Home Center

Sales 10

Intersegment s 57485
55.74¢ 104,125

53872 59,0454 130,595

¥ 1,877 ¥ 100 ¥ 3534

Mittions of yen

B TaTg
L"\.i‘x"

ales 1o customers

intersegment s

¥ 81 > 139
Mittions of yen
2003
minations/
Resort Home Center
Sa #51.003 ¥51,219

Intersegment 5

Total sales 51,905 52,159
230,383 55,872 51,854
® 17631 ¥ {3969 Yy 305

Thousands of U.S. doflars

inations/

Carporate
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Total assets, depreciation and capital investments

Millions of yen

2005

Elirminations/

Home Canter Other Corpo
Toral assets Y4(3.655 ¥119,954 ¥237.813  ¥1,358807
Depreci 705 5875 1,685 19,243
Capiral investments 725 15,842 (331 56,694
Millions of yen
2004

Eliminationss

Horne Center Corporate {onsc

9 ¥256,291 ¥
647 1,767

Capital invests

fitlions of yen
2003 o
Eliminations/
Home (ente: Other Corporate Consolid
lotal assets ¥I5000  YIBOTE 276170 1004441
592 4,774 1,794 1386
.1 2247 1.354 24,701

2005

Elirminationss

Other
$1,093028
Deprec 54,906

airrnent of fixed assets deswibed in Note 2-g was (o decrease
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Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements

Home Cet Cther
Constr
Feal esiate
Care of Care of Cperation of Manufaciure and
condominiums  commercial by ‘do-it-yourself” sales of

hardware canters buiiding materials

ancd goit cour:

Physic
Operation of
city type hoteis

wsisting of general corporate expenses incurred

Himinations

yate inciude unailocated operating exp

by the administration headqx.xa(iers of the Company.

Corporats assets are principally cash and cash equivalents, mark

10.Other income {expenses). Other — net

Other income (expanses). Other — net”for the years er 05, 2004 and 2003 consisted of the following:

Thousands of
Millions of yen U.S. doltars
2004 2003 2005
¥ 5 h8 Q}) ¥ I 4 47

Gain on sales of market and investment sex

Imp ent loss on property, plant and 2

for doubtful accounts

oM pensicn Oi:'»ii(;ie:_ion

onexempt ion

i hardware centers
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11.Income taxes

stic subsidiaries are subject to lapans

The Company
resulted in a no

vears ended

onal and local inco

for tF

ares which, in the aggregate,
ended March 31, 2005, and 42.0% for the

statutory tax rates of approximat

-
}

1, 2004 and 2003, respectively,

The tax effects of significant temiporary differences and loss canryforwards which resuited in deferred tax assets and fiabilities at

March 31, 2005 and 2004 are as follows:

Thousands of
Millions of yen .5, dollars
20605 2004 2805
Current:
Detorrod tas ass
eid for resale % ¥ 12162 $102439
5659 58,2445
1,328 12,701
3.393 116,673
¥ ¥ 22,552 & 290,262

Nen

~

i

ry plant and equipme

on for property, plant and equipment

250,056

107,48¢
{8.545)
5 823,54

Fetain

i for tax allowable reserves

3 OSNINGS GRPIee

e securities
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Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements

n the normal ef

H06% 42.0% 42.0%
17 1.3
fvidend income HOAN 0o [axe}
~weps of associated companies 0o 09 0.1
i and agvances to associated companies 0.1 o4
10 03 (G
allowance for deferred tax assets 3 0.1 1.2

enle

due 1o change of ta rate

(e

rcfer Jo entitled "Reform of a Portion of Local Tax Law

April 1.2004 As a result of this reform, the statutory i Ef'a.CUlathﬂ of
e 1axes concerning temporary differences which aesxnez*hd 10 be reglized or A'lempwpml , 2004 will be

Hanges was (o deCrease deferred tax assets and deferred tax assets on land revaluation by ¥3,145 million and
fhion, rospecnively, and 1o increase income tares-deferred, net unrealized gam on am-‘ulabie for-sale securities and fand

revaluation dif

rerce by ¥35,170 million, ¥18 million and ¥1.417 million, respectively, as

003 and for the vear ended

March 31,2

12.Research and development costs

Research anc rrillion ($53,392 thousand). ¥5.667 million and ¥5.609 million

for the

13. Leases

Finance leases:

{Lessee)

s mcluding fease payments under finance leases that are not deemed o transfer cwnarship of the leased
2 were ¥4.647 million (§43 430 thousand), ¥5,514 mitlion, and ¥4 815 million :’3 ‘r e vears ended March 33

crespedtively,
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Pro forrma information of leased

the leased property 1o the |
and 2004 were as foffows:

Millions of yen

Machinery Furniture
and and

equiprnent fixtures
ACQUISHICT COSt ¥1,003
Accumulated depreciation 278
Accumulated impairment loss 2 pa
Net feased property Y2566 ¥ 813 ¥ 5,204 ¥ 8556

SrUCTures fixiures otal
Acquisition cost $71215 493,804
Accumularad depraciation 47,706 45,168
Accumulated impairment loss 14 19
Net leased prop p § 7598 $48635 § 80,243
Millions of yen

Totai
Acauisition cost ¥iz 1z
Accumulated depreciation 1612
Accumulatad impairment loss 154

Net leased property

iarch 21,2005 and 2004 were as follows:
Thousands of
Millions of yen U.s. dollars

2004

Obligations under such finance {eases

¥ 4507

Due within one yaar

Due after one year

¥
¥

N
(e
N
i

Impairment ¢

The amount of acquisition cost and ohii

S5T GXPENsE PO

Depreciation exper

(e

Y

puted by the straight-line method, re
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(Lessor)

Total rental income ung
praperty to the lesse
The amount of the impute
is computed usmg the interest method, was

March 31,2005

Property and equipment leas
above consisted of the ml!owim

e knbew

(b

d interest income

Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements

zmed 10 transfer ownership of the leased
ousand) for the year ended March 31, 2005.

din the above rental income, which
# 7 m :sz (53,523 thousand) for the year ended

d to customers under inance lease arrangements mentioned
ar March 31, 2005,

Miliions of yen

STTUCIUNes ec:;uipmem Total
Acquisition cost ¥10218 ¥123 ¥IG 7586
Accurnulated depreciati 15,439
Net | 414,347
Toral
Acquisitic 278,374

Accumulated de

Netleased property

Future rertal income under fi

$134,.084

inance leases at March 37, 2005 was as follows:

Due wi

The imputed inter
nance leases.

Depreciation expensed relating
tioned above was ¥2.561

est income portion is exciuded from

o the leased gs

S thousand: for

Thousands of
Millions of yen .S, doftars
¥ 5,133
12,746

= amount of rental income under fi-

ots under finance lease arrangements men-
v enced March 21,2005

Daiwa House Group 111



Operating leases:

Cbligations and futwre rental income under non-cancellab eases a3 of March 21,

2005 and 2004 were as follows:

{Lessee) Thousands of
U.S. doifars

Due within one year ¥ 36,765
Due after one year 446,447
¥AB3. 212
Thousands of
Mitlions af yen 4.5, dofiars

1S angt interest

to foreign exchange forward contra
interest rate risks.

ate swaps 1o hedge for-

itis the Group's policy to use derivatives only for the pu
with liabilities.

fucing marker risks assodiated

Derivatives are subject to market risk and credit risk. Becau
tivas are imited to major international finandial institutions,
losses arising fro =it risk,

erparies 1o those deriva-
—ompany does not anticipate any

1 such

The Company implemented a risk control systermn for derivatives ¢
limitation and selection of the counterparties. The systern’s pri

1ol the purpose,
s 10 avoid excess
risks associated with derivatives. Each derivative transaction, which ok on these internal poli-
is reported to the Director of the Fmanﬂn«:;- Department, and the execution and control of

derivatives are managed by the Finance Section of the Company.

As of parch 31,2005 and 2004, the Group did not have any derivative ¢

“ontracts cutstanding,

15.Contingencies

At March 21, 2005,
the ordinary course of business amounted ¢

ntingent lahilities for notes endorsed wi
021 million (8607 thou
{3501,822 thousand), respectively. Included in loans guarant
frorm banks in the amount of ¥53,297 million (3498,103 thousand),

16.Subsequent event

m

approved at the

Thousands of
U.5. dolars

vear-end cash
Bonuses to Gi
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Deloitte.

independent auditors' report

1o the Board of Directors of Daivia House Industry Co, Lrd:

e have audited the accompanying consclic
es as of March 31, 2005 and 2004, and

Deloitte Touche Tohmatsu
Osaka Kokusai Building
2-3-13, Azuchi-machi
Chuo-ku, Osaka 541-0052
lapan

Tel: +81(6) 6261 1381
Fax: +81 (6} 6261 1238
www.deloitte.com/ip

e Industry Co, Ltd. and subsid-

ity and cash flows for each of the three years in the period wnxiefi March 21, 2005, all e>p|es>eJ in Japanese yen.

1

requira that we plan and perform the audit to obtain reasonabie

amounts and disclosures in the financial statemn

ssed and significant estimates made by managerment, as well as eva

sentator

in our oninion, the conscolidated financial statements referrsd to

he consolic

tzd results of thelr operations and th

= conducted our audits in accordance with auditing standar

nerts are free of material misstatement. An audit includes examin

ents. An audit also inc

tad Anandal position of Dalwa House ndustry Co.
e cash fic

s management. Our responsibility
ts based on our audits.

(a3

s gererally accepted in lapan. Thase standards
urange about whethnr the fmar;cia& state-
e supporting the
"Wurmng principles

3

f statement pre-

e believa that our audits provide a reasonable basis for our opinion.

above ant fairly, in all material respects, the
< and s s a5 of March 31, 2005 and 2004,

ch of the thres years in the period

ended March 21, 2005, in conformity with accounting principles generally accepted in Japan.

for employees retirement benefits as of March 31

venly over principally 10 years, was changed (o be amortized w

g

= discussed in Note 24, the Company and certain subsidiaries ¢har

2005 and the aciua

Cur audits also comprehended the transiation of lapanese

ethod of accounting for its liabil-
5.which previously was amortized

en incurred.

en amounts inte US dollar amounts and, in our

opirion, such translation has been rmade in conformity with the basis stated in Note 1. Such US. dollar amounts

e preser

ted solely for the convenience of readers outside Japa

ﬂﬁu/)&- Jaesc e S A moT g

Tune 29, 2005

Member of
Deloitte Touche Tohmatsu

Daiwa House Group
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Founding:
Paid-in capital:
Employees:
Head Office:

Tokyo Office:

Nagoya Office:

Branches:

Factories:

Research center:

Training centers:

Source

ateiiand

3o Tigures

RV

A}
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sponsitiliny  Tetswi Ogawa/Daiwa House  Producer & creative director - Keisuke izumoto/Daiwa House

v Hroak: Kitagawa/Nippon Arts Inc. - Designer « #dayun Makino/D & Join inc. Photographer  Knzumasa Kondo
fapariese writer - Xazuko Nogai/Dawvea House; Miki Tsuchida  English transiaior & editor - Stephen Loyd/G & Jein inc.
Direcior & coordinaior - Kalsuya iwado/D & loin Inc. Assistant direcior - Mitsuyo Aizawa, Ken Furusho, Masami Naoi/Deiwa Hous?




Daiwa House Industry Co, Ltd.

o oth

ved Srirgad in Japs




